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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

About the National Audit Office
Mandate

The statutory mandate and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are
provided for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the URT of 1977 (as amended from
time to time) and in Section 10 (1} of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418.

Vision

A credible and modern Supreme Audit Institution with high-quality audit services for
enhancing public confidence.

Mission

To provide high-quality audit services through modernisation of functions that enhance
accountability and transparency in the management of public resources.

Motto: "Modernising External Audit for Stronger Public Confidence”
Core values
In providing quality services, NAO is guided by the following Core Values:

i. Independence and objectivity
ii. Professional competence

fii. Integrity

iv. Creativity and Innovation

v. Results-Oriented

vi. Teamwork Spirit

We do this by:

v Contributing to better stewardship of public funds by ensuring that our clients are
accountable for the resources entrusted to them;

v" Helping to improve the quality of public services by supporting innovation in the use of
public resources;

v' Providing technical advice to our clients on operational gaps in their operating systems;

Systematically involve our clients in the audit process and audit cycles; and

Providing audit staff with adequate working tools and facilities that promote

independence.

RN

© This audit report is intended to be used by Mzumbe University and may form part of the
annual general report, which once tabled to National Assembly, becomes a public document;
hence, its distribution may not be limited.
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1.0 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL

Chairman of the University Council,
Mzumbe University,

P. 0. Box 1,

MOROGORO.

1.1 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Unqualified Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Mzumbe University, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement and the statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in alt material respects,
the financial position of Mzumbe University as at 30 June 2022, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the manner required by the
Public Finance Act, Cap. 348.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (iSSAls). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
section below entitled “Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of
the Financial Statements”. | am independent of Mzumbe University in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code} together with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors
(NBAA) Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | have determined
that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Report by those Charged with Governance and the Declaration by the Head of Finance but
does not include the financial statements and my audit report thereon which | obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IPSAS and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
audit report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with [S5Als, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my audit report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, tc modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest of such communication.
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In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418 requires me to satisfy myself that
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

Further, Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap 410 requires me to state in my
annual audit report whether or not the audited entity has complied with the procedures
prescribed in the Procurement Act and its Regulations.

1.2 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS
1.2.1 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws
Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services

| performed a compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services of Mzumbe
University for the financial year 2021/22 as per the Public Procurement laws.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that, except for the matters described below,
procurement of goods, works and services of Mzumbe University is generally in compliance
with the requirements of the Public Procurement laws.

Delay in delivery of procured goods by suppliers TZS 2,186,145,732

The University contracts records on supply of various Computer and Accessories show
protracted delays in delivery of goods worth TZS 2,186,145,732 ranging from 22 to 331 days
contrary to the contracts agreement. No liquidated damages were charged from those
suppliers contrary to clause 25.1 of GCC, clause 21 of SCC of the Contract Agreement and
Regulation 112 of the Public Procurement Regutations 2013 as amended by Regulations 37 of
Public Procurement (Amendment) Regulations, 2016.

Award of contract to unresponsive bidder TZS 117,183,400

On 27 January 2022, Mzumbe signed a contract number MU/CF/CB.2/8C/957 for Supply of
Computers and its accessories at Mzumbe University Main Campus at contract price of TZS
117,183,400 (VAT Inclusive). According to contract agreement, the delivery period was seven
to fourteen days after signing of the contract. Therefore, the supplier was required to deliver
procured goods on or before 10 February 2022.

Review of evaluation report noted that, after all tenderers found to be substantially
responsive to the tender documents, while there was no any arithmetical or computationat
error found on the bidding prices, the awarded supplier was wrongly reported as the lowest
evaluated bidder with price of TZS 128,655,400 instead of the correct lowest evaluated biding
price of TZS 100,702,542. Consequently, the awarded supplier was recommended and
awarded the tender at negotiated price of TZS 117,183,400 despite that supplier did not
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qualify. The awarded supplier subsequently failed to implement the contract agreement for
supply of Computers and its accessories at MU.

1.2.2 Compliance with the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines
Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution of Mzumbe University
for the financial year 2021/22 as per the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that, except for the matters described below,
Budget formulation and execution of Mzumbe University is generally in compliance with the
requirements of the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines.

Non-release of Development Grants TZS 1,000,000,000

The annual budget of Mzumbe University indicated that, the University planned to receive
capital grant of TZS 1 billion for the construction of administration block from the
Government. The University prepared user requirements for soliciting consultants among the
initial efforts while waiting for disbursement of the amount from the Government. However,
up to the year end 2021/22, the budgeted grant was not released by the Government to
finance the activity.

_maiot—

Salhina M. Mkumba

Ag. Controller and Auditor General
Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania
March 2023
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2.0 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2022
2.1 INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to the Tanzania financial reporting standard no.1 on the report by those charged
with governance, Mzumbe University Council would like to present its financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022. Presentation of the financial statements is in accordance
with the provisions of the Public Audit, Cap 418 [R.E 2021], Public Finance Act, Cap 348
[R.E 2020), The Universities {General) Regulations, 2013, Rule 64 of the Mzumbe University
Charter, 2007 and presented based on Accrual Basis of International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS). Additional information has been included to enhance
understanding and comparison of facts as required and in line with the IPSAS accrual basis
of accounting.

The financial statements disclose the affairs of Mzumbe University for the year ended 30
June 2022 and they comprise; Statement of financial position, statement of financial
performance, statement of cash flow, statement of changes in net assets, statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts, along with other schedules and notes as
provided in IPSAS 1 Para21.

2.2 VISION

Mzumbe University aims to be a centre of excellence in training, research, consultancy and
outreach services in management and allied sciences for socio-economic development of
the people by 2025.

2.3 MISSION

The mission of the University is to provide opportunities for acquisition, development,
preservation and dissemination of knowledge and skills through training, research,
technical and professional services.

2.4 CORE VALUES OF THE UNIVERSITY

The building of a cohesive and binding organizational culture is a fundamental pre-requisite
for the sustainable development of the University. The following are the core values that
guide Mzumbe University’s organizational culture.

2.4.1.1 Accountability: Being accountable to our stakeholders and to the community for
the mandate and responsibilities bestowed upon us.

2.41.2  Learning and Growth: We are open to learning from others and from our
challenges & successes for outstanding and enduring performance.

2.4.1.3 Creativity and Innovativeness: Always curious and striving to reach out and
embrace new technologies and innovative methods of doing our work and
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contributing to socio- economic development.

2.4.1.4  Knowledge Creation and Dissemination: We strive to ensure continuous knowledge
creation through research and transfer the same to society for the development of
the people.

2.4.1.5 Integrity and Respect: Being exemplary in our behaviour and acting with honesty
and impartiality in all our transactions.

2.4.1.6 Passion and Commitment: We always challenge our ideas on what is the best
course of action we should take in order to satisfy our customers.

2.4.1.7 Customer-centric: We strive to continuously respond te the current and future
needs of society.

2.4.1.8 Professionalism: We commit to adhering to professionalism in all our undertakings

2.5 MZUMBE UNIVERSITY KEY RESULT AREAS (KRA) OF THE STRATEGIC PLAN

The 5t Mzumbe University corporate strategic plan has seven key results areas (KRAs). The
University seeks outcomes in these areas during the implementation period of the Plan. The
KRAs to be addressed during the five years of the Plan are listed below:

» KRA A: implementation of National Agenda

» KRA B: Improvement of Teaching and Learning Infrastructure

» KRA C: Improvement of the Teaching and Learning Processes

» KRA D: Enhance Research, Innovation, and Publication Capability

= KRA E: Enhance Consultancy, Linkages, Outreach Services and Marketing Activities

= KRA F: Enhance institutional governance, management, administration and staff
development.

* KRA G: Implementation of Cross-cutting issues and International Agenda
2.6 NATURE/OBJECTIVES/STRATEGIES OF THE UNIVERSITY
2.6.1 THE NATURE OF THE UNIVERSITY

The Mzumbe University Act, 2001, established Mzumbe University, a Government-owned
institution, in Mvomero District in Morogoro, Tanzania in place of the Institute of
Development Management - Mzumbe (hereinafter referred to as the former Institute). The
former Institute, which was established by the Institute of Development Management Act,
1972 ceased to exist on 1 January 2002 when the University legally came into existence.
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The Universities Act, 2005, repealed the Mzumbe University Act, 2001 and the University
was re-established by Article 4 of the Mzumbe University Charter and Rules of 2007 made
under section 25 of the Universities Act, 2005

2,6,2 OBJECTIVES/PRINCIPAL FUNCTIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY

The operational objectives/principal functions of Mzumbe University as stipulated in
Article 8 of the Mzumbe University Charter, 2007 include:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
(f)

(h)
(i)
b

(k)

To encourage academic staff and students to learn and seek knowledge and truth;
To produce highly educated and adequately trained experts well-prepared and
equipped with requisite skills for self-employment and manning of key positions in
both the Public and Private sectors;

To promote, facilitate and sponsor research into technological, social, economic,
political and cultural spheres for the welfare and development of mankind within
and outside the United Republic of Tanzania;

To seek or institute and award fellowship, scholarships, bursaries, medals, prizes
and other forms of awards, assistance, or sponsorship for the advancement and
dissemination of knowledge and pursuit of truth;

To arrange for the publication and dissemination of material produced in connection
with the work and activities of the University;

To conduct and administer examinations and confer degrees, diplomas, certificates,
and other awards of the University;

To develop, promote and undertake the provision of adult, continuing and distance
education for the enhancement of good governance and efficacious solution to
socio- economic and political problems;

To develop and maintain a reference library and provide library services in the
fields of study undertaken by the University;

To cooperate with the government of the United Republic of Tanzania in the planned
and orderly development of quality education, science and technology;

To establish links and cooperate with other national and international institutions in
the initiation and conduct of cooperative research, publication and training
programmes for the mutual benefit of the cooperating institutions and the United
Republic of Tanzania and generally for the pursuit of the mission of the University;
and

To do any other thing in accordance with the provisions of the Mzumbe University
Charter or any other written law in force in the United Republic of Tanzania in
pursuance of the mission of the University.

2.7 STRATEGIES OF THE UNIVERSITY

The strategies of the University are to provide opportunities for and conduct training,
research, outreach and consultancy in the areas of Management, Public and Local
Government Administration, Economnics, Accountancy and Finance, Business Management,
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Information and Communication Technology, Production Management, Mathematics,
Applied Statistics, Law, Education Management and any related areas of specialization that
contribute to the national skilled human resource development

2.8 CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMAMNCE

The future development plans of the University, as enumerated in its fifth Corporate
Strategic Plan (2021/22 - 2025/26), are geared toward the transformation of Mzumbe
University into a leading knowledge institution for learning, skills innovation, and adoption
through training, research, consultancy, and outreaching services in management and allied
sciences within local and global context by the year 2050,

The University plans to increase the students’ enrolment from 12,343 students to 15,000
students by June 2026; to enrol 3,000 students in Online and Distance Learning
programmes, develop thirty new degree programmes including specialized PhD, Masters
and Bachelor's; and review existing curricula to align them to market demands. The
University, in the five years of the plan, intends to improve the existing and acquisition of
new ICT infrastructure and resources at the University. Improvement in ICT, in general, is
vital in enhancing the adoption of ICT approaches in teaching and learning in which all the
University campuses will be connected. In addition, the University aims to invest in ICT in
order to mainstream ICT services in all Mzumbe University strategic functions.

During the Plan period, the University envisions employing at least 250 additional staff (150
academics and 100 administrative) to cope with the planned increase in students’
enrolment. Staff capacity building will continue to be improved during the next five years,
and in particular, 31 academic staff will be trained to PhD degree level and 26 to Master’s
degree level, 100 administrative staff will attend short-term capacity building training
annually and 40 administrative staff will attend long-term training programmes.

The University also plans to strengthen academic staff and students’ research and
innovation capacity by ensuring that at least 30% of academic staff attend capacity-
building training on research development and dissemination skills annually and by
initiating at least one mentorship programme in research, publication, and consultancy for
junior academic staff in each Campus College/ School/ Faculty/ Institute.

The University will enhance financial mobilization capability, utilization efficiency and
sustainability by designing and deploying prudent financial management systems and
enhancing the resource mobilization strategies.

Cross-cutting issues shall also be addressed during this period including strengthening
mechanisms and processes for promoting gender equality, strengthening mechanisms and
initiatives for environmental management, strengthening security services within and
around Mzumbe University Community, enhancing students’ and staff participation in sports
and games and strengthening students' academic and social counselling services. The
University will continue to improve health services and reduce HIV/AIDS infections,
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strengthen sensitization programmes and measures on prevention and combating
corruption.

The University continues to improve its performance by implementing various development
projects that are mentioned in the MU CSP. The projects that are categorized as short and
medium-term plans include:

During the year 2022/23, the University will start the construction of the following
infrastructures

i. One academic complex building at the Main Campus with the capacity of
providing 96 staff offices and 12 classrooms
ii. Construction of one Administration Block with the capacity to accommodate 143
people
ifi. Construction of Administration cum Academic building at Tanga Campus
iv. Construction of Dispensary building at Tanga Campus
v. Construction of Cafeteria at Tanga Campus
vi. Construction of Library and bookshop building at Tanga Campus
vii. Construction of students’ hostels at Tanga Campus
viii. Construction of sewage system and solid waste dumping site at Tanga Campus
ix. Construction of Directorate of ICT and Innovation [ncubation Centre
x. Construction of one cafeteria with a seating capacity of 900 people
xi. Construction of wastewater treatment system at the Main Campus
xii. Solid waste dumping site at Main Campus
xiii. Reservoir Tanks at Main Campus

2.9 EXTERNAL FACTORS THAT HAVE INFLUENCE ON THE UNIVERSITY’S BUSINESS

Mzumbe University like any other higher tearning institution is affected by the following
external factors:

i) Economic Conditions

The effectiveness of the University to undertake its functions relies on the economic

conditions of the country. The 5N €SP assumes that the same economic conditions will
prevail in the next five years. However, the University’s risk management framework is
available to guide the University in addressing adverse economic changes that might arise
and are likely to affect the implementation of this plan.

if) Technological Influences

Technology and technological innovation have changed the approaches in which academic
institutions undertake their functions across the world. Due to the rapid technological
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changes, the future workforce will require new skill sets, as well as new approaches to
acquire those skills. The University needs to create technologically supported learning
environments for providing new opportunities and ensuring it remains competitive in the
global marketplace.

iii) Legal and Regulatory Frameworks

The growth of the higher education sub-sector and performance of Higher Learning
Institutions (HLIs), including Mzumbe University owes much to the existing legal and
regulatory framework of the education sector. The University performs its functions and
activities by being guided by a variety of policies, laws, regulations, and other regulatory
mechanisms.

According to the Education and Training Policy (2014), Mzumbe University is obliged to
produce graduates with competitive skills relevant to the development and needs of
regional and international standards. The main challenge is the development of curricula
relevant to competitive skills and labour market dynamics.

Mzumbe University like other universities in the country is regulated by the Tanzania
Commission for Universities (TCU). The TCU as a regulator sets standards, provides quality
assurance services, coordinates and rationalizes training programmes and promotes
cooperation among universities in Tanzania. Mzumbe University is operating within these
legal and regulatory frameworks.

iv) Political Conditions

Stable political conditions and support from political institutions are one of the factors
that have contributed to the growth of the University. Under the stable political situation,
the University has recorded growth in students’ enrolment, physical and technological
infrastructure, and number of Campuses. Besides, it has alsc improved its human resource
capacity, assets and financial capability, as well as local and international collaborations.

v) Demographic Influences

The demographic features of the population of Tanzania provide an encouraging outlook for
the growth of the higher education sector in the country. The population is growing
annually, implying that the demand for education services at all levels will increase over
time. The increase in population mirrors the increasing number of students enrolled in
HLIs. In the next five years, both the population and the number of people demanding
tertiary education are expected to increase. The forecast implies that Mzumbe University,
as one of the Public HLIs, is expected to enhance its capacity and reposition itself better
to fulfil the educational needs of this growing population.

vi}  Socio-Culture Orientations

There is a growing awareness of the importance of education across Tanzanian

11

Controller and Auditor Generat AR/PA/MU/2021/22



communities. Currently, societies recognize the important role of higher education and HLIs
in facilitating sustainable socio-economic development in the country. The socio- cultural
influences and emphasis of peer groups in societies on education matters have raised the

demand for education services at all levels, The University 5th €SP assumes that socio-
cultural influences will continue to create norms that emphasize the importance of
education to society members.

vii) Competitive Pressure

The University faces direct and indirect competition, mainly in its academic programmes,
short courses, and consultancy services. Direct competition emerges from Higher Learning
Institutions (HLIs) operating locally and offering similar services as Mzumbe University. On
the contrary, indirect competition is brought by local HLIs that specialize in disciplines not
offered by Mzumbe University as well as foreign institutions.

viii) The International Environment

The international environment of the University constitutes foreign academic and research
institutions, students, and clients who demand a variety of services from the University.
Since its establishment, the University has collaborated with a number of international
academic and research institutions. Similarly, it has conducted research projects or
offered academic programmes jointly with foreign Universities in East Africa, Europe, the
United States of America, and Asia.

The University has attracted a few full-time foreign students, but it usually accommodates
foreign students under exchange programmes for a specific duration. The majority of these
foreign students are under collaborative projects between Mzumbe and foreign
Universities. Foreign universities are advanced in terms of technology, skills, and other
capabilities. Therefore, the interaction with such institutions is beneficial to Mzumbe, as it
fosters technology transfer, human resource development, and institutional capacity in
research, teaching, and innovation.

The University holds a good track record of collaborating with foreign universities,
international associations, and other bodies. The developed goodwill will facilitate future
interactions between Mzumbe and these international stakeholders.

2.10 CRITICAL ISSUES FROM SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS THAT INFLUENCED THE
UNIVERSITY’S SERVICE DELIVERY

The appraisals of the University's internal and external environments, as well as SWOC and
stakeholder analyses, have resulted in the determination of the following critical issues

() Strengthening the Quantity and Quality of Human Resources

The internal appraisal analysis shows that, in the past five years, the number of students
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has been increasing un-proportional to the increase in the number of staffs. As a result,
the student-staff ratio has been deteriorating over the years, especially in the past two
years. Similarly, the University has a few senior members of the academic staff; a large
proportion of the University academic staff are in junior ranks (Tutorial Assistants to
Lecturer positions). With the anticipated expansion of the University, strengthening both
the quality and quantity of human resources is indispensable. With this understanding, the

Sth CSP has developed a specific strategy and corresponding targets for strengthening the
human resource capacity of the University.

@ Improvement of Teaching and Learning Infrastructure

Infrastructure for teaching and learning are important elements to enable the
University to perform its roles and functions effectively. The appraisal of the internal
environment reveals that the available physical and technological infrastructure
supports teaching and learning only modestly. Therefore, the University should improve
the teaching and learning infrastructure significantly. The anticipated expansion of the
University stimulates the need for improving teaching and learning infrastructure. This
plan has set strategies and targets for rehabilitating the existing physical and ICT
infrastructure as well as constructing or acquiring new ones on all University campuses.

@ Integration of ICT in Teaching, Learning, and Administration Functions

The technological and competitive environment reveals that the University can perform
its functions effectively if it can successfully integrate the use of ICT in undertaking its
operations. The external appraisal records that a variety of relevant technological
systems or tools exist for every core function of the University. As a result, the
University can perform its functions with greater success and create a competitive
advantage by adopting ICT in undertaking its activities. This plan has developed a
strategic objective and corresponding strategies and targets for improving the use of ICT
in University operations.

(v Strengthening Research, Innovation, and Publication Capacity

Research, innovation, and publication are important functions of the University.
However, the internal appraisal reveals that, in the past five years, the University has
completed a small number of research projects and published a relatively small number
of scholarly works. Furthermore, within the same period, the University has not
recorded significant performance in undertaking innovation activities. The appraisal
outcome in this area suggests that the University should institute deliberate measures to
improve the capacity of staff to undertake research, innovation, and publication

activities. On this basis, the 5th CSp has developed a specific KRA through which the
University will obtain performance in research, innovation, and publication activities.
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“

)

2.11

Strengthening the Capacity of University Staff in Consultancy and Outreach
activities

The University has been offering Continuing Professional Development Programmes
(CPDP) and consultancy services to the public as part of contributing to the
professional and socio-economic development of society and generating income. The
appraisal in this area reveals that, in the past ten years, the University has performed
relatively well in offering CPDPs and consultancy services, although there is an
opportunity of improving the achieved performance. On the contrary, it has not
performed well in the provision of outreach services. The appraisal suggests that the
University should institute deliberate measures to strengthen the capacity of staff to

perform consultancy and outreach activities. The 5th CSP has developed strategies and
set corresponding targets to strengthen the University's capacity in undertaking
consultancy and outreach activities.

Development of University land plots

The University owns land ideal for developing University infrastructures at llemela -
Mwanza, Kiserian - Arusha, Upanga, Tegeta and Mbweni - Dar es Salaam, and Iwambi-
Mbeya. Except for llemela and Mbweni, the University has completed the preparation of
master plans for developing these areas. With this view, the University has
developed objectives and targets for developing these areas throughthe
operationalization of the master plan for each area.

KEY STRENGTHS AND RESOURCES

The University has the following key strengths and resources:

2.11.1

Human Resource

The University has skilled and experienced employees who are considered a key resource in
pursuing the University's strategic objectives. On 30 June 2022, the University had a total
of 637 staff with diverse experiences and competencies as summarized in Table 1. The
University has a Staff Development and Training Programme which ensures that each year, at
least 40% of all employees attend either short-term or long-term training to build capacity
and improve employee’s performance.

Table 1: Number of Staff at Mzumbe University as on 30 June 2022

Academic Staff Administrative Staff | Number of Staff by Gender
Qualifications Total
Mate Female Male Female Male Female

PhD 90 36 1 1 91 37 128

Masters 100 51 29 30 129 81 210

Bachelors 13 6 66 29 79 35 114

Diploma 0 0 35 46 35 46 81
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Certificates 0 0 44 36 44 36 80
Form IV/STD VI 0 0 15 9 15 9 24
Total 203 93 190 151 393 244 637

Source: Staff establishment 2021/22
2.11.2 Financial Sustainability
The University’s sources of revenue consist of;
i. Government subvention for Personal Emoluments (PE) and Capital Development.

ii. Mzumbe University internally generated income collected from students’ fees,
accommodation, research projects, short courses and consultancies.

iii. Subvention consists of grants received from Development Partners.

During the year under review, the University collected 113% of the approved budget for
Personal Emoluments and 98% of the approved budget for development projects. The
internally generated income measured up to target by 118% while, 78% of Development
Partners grants budget was collected during the year under review. The University
collected TZS 23.47 billion from internal sources compared to TZS 20.29 billion that was
budgeted. Grants from Development Partners amounted to TZS 6.20 billion, which is 78% of
the total target of TZS 7.90 billion. Effective collection of revenue, especially from its own
sources, enabled the University to meet most of its operational expenses.

2.11.3 Information and Communication Technology (ICT)

The University recognizes that ICT is an important enabler in service delivery. This is the
reason why the University has continuously invested in technology to realize operational
excellence and better service delivery to its customers. The University has modest internet
and intranet connectivity within its campuses. The University is also promoting innovation,
adoption and utilization of ICT in developing management-and business solutions to
support human capital development by preparing students to become active, creative,
knowledgeable, and ethical participants in the global connected society. Further, the
University has an ICT Steering Committee whose main duty is to advise and determine the
prioritization of IT-enabled investment programmes in line with the University's strategies.

2.11.4 Policies, Guidelines and Strategies

Most important policies, guidelines and strategies for facilitating the implementation of
the core functions of the University are in place and are reviewed and updated regularly
based on the need and emerging trends. They are based on information from performance
measurement, benchmarking and continuous learning.
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2.11.5 Organization Structure, Systems and Processes

Mzumbe University's administrative system is centralized with campus colleges having
limited autonomy in administrative matters. Also, the organizational structure is
hierarchical from central administration to campus colleges, schools, faculties,
directorates and institutes, departments and sections. A three-way communication system
is common with information flowing in all directions; top-down, bottom-up and laterally.

2.11.6 Institutional Collaborations, Networking and Partnership

The University maintains internal and externat links and collaborations with many
universities and higher learning institutions from within Tanzania, East Africa, Southern
Africa, Asia, Europe, North America and Australia. It also collaborates with regional and
international organizations as well serving as a member of different boards and
committees.

2.12 PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Council establishes a Risk Management Policy for all University activities to ensure the
likelihood and consequences of risks are controlled within pre-determined limits. It is the
responsibility of the University Council to ensure that proper financial controls are in place
to uphold principles of accountability and transparency and that there are sufficient
resources to support this function. During the year under review, the University faced the
following major risks:

i) Strategic Risk

This is a risk that affects the University’s ability to achieve its goals. For instance, the
University heavily depends on tuition fees as a major source of internal generating
revenue, thus, a decline in postgraduate students’ enrolment for the academic year
2021/22 prevented the University from achieving the strategic objective of attaining an
increase in internally generated revenue by 10% annually.

To mitigate this risk, the University Management has continued to extensively market its
unique advantage and strived to be competitive and enhanced its visibility in the
communities in which the University serves, for instance, participating in the Dar es
Salaam International Trade Fair and Higher Education, Science and Technology Exhibitions
organized by TCU.

if) Financial Risk

This is a risk that the University may fail to meet its financial obligations. For instance, the
University fails to pay creditors and causes them to incur financial loss or the University
fails to cover its committed credit facilities and working capital requirements as budgeted
for that particular year.
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To mitigate this risk, the Directorate of Finance has been vested with the role of managing
risks under the guidance of the Council. The University has a financial system that tracks all
transactions performed during the financial year and at the same time, an updated assets
register is in place. Also, the required procedures for safeguarding the University's assets
are adhered to.

ili)  Operational Risk

This is a risk that affects an ongoing management process. For instance, the University has
recently implemented an Online Application and Admission system that is integrated with
the Government's electronic Payment Gateway system. Implementation of the system
involved major changes in business processes with respect to transaction processing by
students and staff.

The University Management assessed the operational risks through the Directorate of
Internal Audit and mitigating measures were taken to ensure that day-to-dayactivities are
well-planned and performed in conformity with the established internal controls.

2.13 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Council accepts final responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the University. It is the task of Management to ensure that adequate internal
financial and operational control systems are developed and maintained on an ongoing
basis in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

2.13.1.1  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

2.13.1.2 Safeguarding the University’s assets;

2.13.1.3 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

2.13.1.4 Reliability of accounting records;

2.13.1.5 Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions; and
2.13.1.6 Responsible behaviours toward all stakeholders.

The efficiency of any internal control system is dependent on the strict observance of
prescribed measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance with such measures by
staff. Whilst no system of internal confrol can provide absolute assurance against
misstatement or losses, the University system is designed to provide the Council with
reasonable assurance that the procedures in place are operating effectively.

The Council assessed the internal control systems throughout the financial year ended 30
June 2022 and is of the opinion that they met accepted criteria. The Council carries out risk
and internal control assessments through Audit Committee.
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2.13.2 Risk and Internal Control Assessment

The University management is obliged to establish and maintain an effective system of
internal control. The Audit Committee continues to oversee these controls and reviews the
effectiveness of the system as a whole. The performance of the University's internal control
system is being assessed through continuous monitoring activities done by the Directorate
of Internal Audit. Risk assessment is being carried out for the purpose of determining how
identified risks can be mitigated so that the University objectives can be achieved through
the implementation of the Fifth Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan (2021/22 - 2025/26).

in addition to the above, the University has developed Risk Management Framework and
Risk Register based on the Fifth Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan (2021/22 - 2025/26).
Following this development, an Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 was developed.

2.13.3 Safeguarding the University’s Assets

The University has in place various policies and regulations including HIV/AIDS Policy, ICT
Policy, Gender Development Policy, Environmental Management Policy, Accommodation
Policy, Quality Assurance Policy, Security Management Policy, Research and Innovation
Policy, Publication and Operational Guidelines, Investment Policy, Financial Regulations,
Anti- Corruption Strategy, Anti-Plagiarism Guidelines, Procurement Manual, Accounting and
Stores Manual, Clients’ Service Charter, University Staff Rules and Regulations, Intellectual
Property Policy, Staff Retention Policy, Health Policy and the Schemes of Service. These
policies were prepared in order to strengthen the internal controls and hence, promote
efficiency within the University’s operations.

2.13.4 Other Policies and Regulations

The University has in place various policies and regulations including HIV/AIDS Policy, ICT
Policy, Gender Development Policy, Environmental Management Policy, Accommodation
Policy, Quality Assurance Policy, Security Management Policy, Research and Innovation
Policy, Publication and Operational Guidelines, Investment Policy, Financial Regulations,
Anti- Corruption Strategy, Anti-Plagiarism Guidelines, Procurement Manual, Accounting and
Stores Manual, Clients’ Service Charter, University Staff Rules and Regulations and the
Schemes of Service. These policies were prepared in order to strengthen the internal
controls and hence, promote efficiency within the University’s operations

2.13.5 Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The principal functions and operations of the University are governed by the University
Charter and Rules, 2007. The Council confirms that the activities and operations of the
University were conducted in accordance with the Charter and Rules and there was no non-
compliance with other applicable laws and regulations that would have a material impact
on the University’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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2.13.6 Reliability of Accounting Records

The University has employed skilled and competent staff in the Finance and Internal Audit
Directorates; and has in place, a computerized accounting system (ERP SAGE 300).
Accordingly, proper books of accounts have been maintained and the financial statements
are prepared and presented in compliance with the International Public Sector Accounting
Standards {IPSAS).

2.13.7 RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

In fulfilling our goal of being the Centre of Excellence in the provision of training,
research, consultancy and outreach services; the University has succeeded in establishing
partnerships with various stakeholders at national, regional and international levels, aimed
at bringing about significant improvement and professional reforms in service delivery. The
University has established and maintains a harmonious relationship with its internal and
external stakeholders. The University receives cooperation and strong support from
suppliers of goods and services and consumers of its products and services. Specifically,
the University receives continuous support from the Government of Tanzania through the
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology, Higher Education Students’ Loans Board,
The Parliament of the United Republic of Tanzania, Development Partners, the surrounding
community and the general public.

in addition to the above, the University has established working relationships with various
regulatory authorities like the Tanzania Commission for Universities (TCU), National
Council for Technical Education (NACTE), National Board of Accountants and Auditors
(NBAA), Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA) and the Tanzania Revenue
Authority (TRA).

2.14 FINANCIAL POSITION

The financial position of the University is as set out in the statement of financial position.
During the year, the total assets of the University increased by TZS 3.02 billion (2020/21:
TZ51.93 billion). This was mainly attributed by an increase in current assets by TZS 3.74
biltion (2020/21: TZS 0.2 billion) and a decrease of non-current assets by TZS 0.72 billion
(2020/21: TZS 1.73 billion). On the other hand, liabilities decreased by 0.65 billion TZS
(2020/21: decrease of TZS 1.08 billion). This was mainly attributed by the payment of
some staff allowances in respect of responsibility allowance and house allowance and other
salary arrears and practical completion of some construction projects whereby retention
money was paid.

2.15 Events after reporting date

There were no significant known events that influenced the results for the year and
financial position of the University after the reporting date, but if there is retrospective
and prospective adjustment the Management will adjust the Financial Statements.
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2.16 Critical Accounting Policies and Judgements

The accounting policies used in the preparation of financials have been disclosed in Note 2
and 9 of the financial statements. The University financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) on an
accrual basis as issued by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(IPSASB) and the requirements of the:

i. The provision of section 30 (2) of the Public Finance Act. Cap. 348 (R.E 2020);
il. Public Procurement Act 2011;
iii. Treasury circulars and Guidelines issued from time to time; and

iv. Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards No.1. The Report by Those Charged
with Governance. This report becomes effective for financial statements
covering the accounting period beginning 1 January 2021.

These policies are alt considered to be critical for an understanding of the performance and
financial position of the University.

2,17 Capital Structure

The University is 100% owned by the Government. Capital Structure comprises the
contribution of capital expenditure funds from the Government of Tanzania to the
University and Accumulated Surpluses as follows:

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

TZS TZS

Capital Fund 247,813,352 247,813,352
Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits) 82,268,003,049 78,521,621,824
Total Net Assets/Equity 82,515,816,401 78,769,435,176

2,18 Capital Management

Capital includes capital fund and accumulated surpluses, which stood at TZS
82,444,144,872 (2020/21: TZS 78,769,435,176). The primary objective of the University’s
capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong asset base in order to support
its objectives and optimize the achievement of stakeholders’ expectations. No changes
were made to the objectives during the year ended 30 June 2022.
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2.19 TREASURY POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

The University designs, implements and monitors all arrangements for the identification,
management and control of the following treasury management risks.

(a) Liquidity Risk Management

The University ensures that it has sufficient cash to meet its liabilities as they fall due
with a sufficient margin to meet unexpected expenditure that may arise from time to
time.

(b) Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign currency risk is managed at an operational level and it is monitored by the
Directorate of Finance. Losses that arise from foreign liabilities are managed through
timely payment of outstanding liabilities.

(c) Credit Risk Management

The risk of failure by counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to the University
particularly as a result of the counterparty’s diminished creditworthiness, and the
resulting detrimental effect on the University’s capital or current (revenue) resources.
Due to the large number of individual trade debtors, the concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade receivables is greatly reduced. The University exposure to credit
risk is reflected by the carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position for cash
and cash equivalents and receivables.

(d) Legal and Regulatory Risk Management

The University ensures that it does not breach its constitutional and statutory powers
and regulatory requirements. It will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’
powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they may enter into
with the University. In so far as it is reasonably able to do so, the University will seek to
minimize the risk of future legislative or regulatory changes impacting adversely on the
organization.

2,20 CASH FLOWS

The University’s cash flow is as set out in the cash flows statement. As at 30 June 2022,
the University closed with cash and cash equivalents of TZS 8.43 billion (2020/21: TZS 6.19
billion). The increase is mainly attributed by an increase in net cash flow from operating
activities by TZS 1.28 billion and a decrease in utilization of funds for investing activities
by TZS 0.98 billion.
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2.20.1 Commentary Information on Cash Flows

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the University reported a surplus of TZ5
4,340,341,718. The reported surplus was because of COVID-19 as semester two of the
academic year 2020/21 coincided with the first quarter of the financial year under review
and in preparing these financial statements, the Management has considered the impact of
COVID-19 on the University’s financial statement disclosures including revenue recognition.
The University has surpluses for previous years not available for distribution. Such
surpluses and reserves, where available, are exclusively and wholly used for financing the
future development of the University.

2,21 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The University earned a total revenue of TZS 53.47 billion (2020/21: 46.07 bitlion) during
the financial year 2020/21; this includes the University's revenue from Non-Exchange
Transactions of TZS 29.72 billion (2020/21: TZS 25.12 billion), revenue from Exchange
Transactions of TZS 23.79 billion (2020/21: TZS 20.88 bhillion) and foreign exchange loss of
TZS 43.10 million (2020/21: foreign exchange gains of TZS 77.19 million).

The recurrent expenses for the University during the financial year 2021/22 amounted to
TZS 49.13 billion (2020/21: TZS 43.88 billion). Capital expenditure for the year amounted
to TZS 2.80 billion (2020/21: TZS 3.9 billion) against a budget of TZS 4.55 billion (2020/21:
TZS 6.43 billion). The revenue, expenditure and surplus (deficit) for the year as compared
to the previous year is as shown below.
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Revenue: 2021/22 2020/21
TZS ‘billion’ TZS ‘billion’
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 29.72 25.12
Revenue from exchange transactions 23.79 20.88
Gains on foreign exchange translation -0.04 0.08
Totat Revenue 53.47 46.07
Expenses
Expenses from non-exchange transactions 22.21 27.39
Expenses from exchange transactions 23.57 13.27

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.35 3.22
Total Operating Expenses
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

The surplus of TZS 4.34 billion reported in the statement of financial performance arises
from activities that are undertaken by the University as part of its service delivery
activities.

During the year under review, the University had also reviewed the useful life an asset in
changes in the application of Accounting Estimate whereby, resulted in an increase of
depreciation to the tune of TZS 133 million due addition of non- current assets during the
year and increase in accumulated depreciation to the tune of TZS 3.31 billion (also
explained under the Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year).

In general, the financial performance results indicate that the University’s existing sources
of revenue can sustain its operations. Further, the University will continue to monitor
closely its current sources of revenue and explore other sources to enable it to sustain the
expansion of its operations.

Detailed financial performance for 2021/22 is provided in the Statement of Financial
Performance for the year ended 30 June 2022.

2,22 BUDGET PERFORMANCE

The University prepares its budgets in accordance with the Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) contained in the Guideline for the Preparation of Budget and Plans
issued each year by the Ministry responsible for Finance and Planning which also includes
the preparation of cash flows for managing the inflows and outflows on a quarterly basis.
The cash flow projection includes estimates of inflows and outflows from an exchange and
non-exchange transactions generated from operating, investing and financing activities.

43.88
4,34 2.20
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During the year under review, the University had a budget for revenue to the tune of TZS
48.92 billion as compared to the actual received revenue of TZS 53.47 billion which is
91.56 percent of the budgeted amount. Similarly, the University had an expenditure
budget of TZS 48.92 billion as compared to the actual expenses of TZS 49.13 billion which
is 100.43 percent of the total budgeted expenditure. The comparison between the actual
total revenue of TZS 34.28 billion against the actual total expenditure of TZS 32.0 billion
shows the performance of spending of 93%. The Net Receipt over payment of TZS (2.28)
billion. The summary of the budget and expenditure is as shown below:

Budget Amounts Actual Variance: Performance
Amz::nts B!:zaL Final Budget
Description Original Final 8 Vs Actual
Comparable t and Budset
Basis Actual 8
TZS TZS TZS TZ5 %
(billion) (billion) (billion) {billion)
A B C D=C-B E=C/B*100
Total Revenue (A) 48.92 48.92 34,28 (14.63) 70%
Total Expenses (B) 48.92 48.92 32.00 16.92 65%
Net Receipt/Payment (A- - - 2.28 2.28
B)
Performance: Revenue Vs Expenditure (%) 93%

2.23 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2021/22, the University implemented, largely, the planned
activities as indicated below:

(i) Enhancing financial mobilization capability, utilization efficiency and
sustainability

Total revenue collected in the year from internal sources was TZS 23,788,292,626
compared to the targeted amount of TZS 20,291,112,000. The achievement is 117% of the
target, which is a result of amounts, collected mainly from student fees whose collection
follows the academic year which runs between October and November while the financial
year runs between July and June.

(ii) Enhance application of information management systems in academic and
administrative functions

In order to attain this target, the University continued the development of an Online
Application and Admission Portal.
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The system is being developed by experts from within the University and the Management
saved about 89% of the budget allocated to acquire the same system from a vendor. This
system has been integrated with the Government Electronic Payment Gateway (GePG) in
compliance with Government directives. The Government of Tanzania Hospital
Management Information System (GoT-HOMIS) which is used to collect fees at the
University Health Centre has also been integrated with GePG for effective revenue
collection from patients.

(iii) Improving the Working Environment for Efficient and Effective Service Delivery

In order to strengthen the organizational structure, various policies, guidelines and
procedures were approved by the University Council and they are in operation.

(iv) Improving Physical Infrastructures and Learning Facilities

During the period under review, the University retooled four students’ hostels with the
capacity of 1024 students.

2,24 SOLVENCY AND LIQUIDITY

The University Council confirms and accepts that International Public Sector Accounting
Standards ([PSASs) have been followed and that the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. The Council has reasonable expectations and assurance
that Mzumbe University has adequate resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future.

The University’s liquidity ratios and working capital for the year 2021/22 is as summarized
hereunder:

2021/22 2020721
TZS TZS
Liquidity Ratios:
Current Ratio 1.9:1 1.2:1
Acid Test Ratio 1.8:1 1.2:1
Working Capital 5,907,615,159 1,713,598,296

The University’s total liability as of 30 June 2022 was TZS 6.77 billion as compared to TZS
7.42 billion as at 30 June 2021, and total assets were worth TZS 89.22 billion compared to
TZS 86.19 billion as on 30 June 2021. The University’s state of affairs as on 30 June 2022 is
shown in the accompanying statement of financial position. The statement of financial
position as on 30 June 2022 showed a net asset of TZS 82.44 billion as compared to TZS
78.77 billion as at 30 June 2021 which indicates that the University was a going concern.
The University Council considers the University to be solvent on the basis of the working
capital position,
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2.25 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPis)

Key Performance Indicators measure the nature and scope of efficiency and effectiveness
of Mzumbe University operations. KPIs are as per Recommended Practice Guideline (RPG)
on reporting service performance information that assists users of the financial statements
to assess the University service efficiency and effectiveness. The Annual Action Plan for
the financial year 2021/22 has set 107 targets, which were spread across all the 10
strategic objectives to be attained by 30 June 2022. The Implementation of the CSP is
evaluated on a quarterly basis, based on key performance indicators and its report is
compiled on a semi-annual and annual basis. The assessment of performance includes both
financial and non-financial aspects. On average implementation of the Strategic Goals by
30 June 2022 was 73% whereby 29% of the targets were completed, 68% were in progress
and 3% has not yetstarted.

The University’s KPis and achievements for the period under review are as indicated in the
matrix below.
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

2.26 UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The Governing Council of Mzumbe University was established under Article 21 of Mzumbe
University Charter, 2007 and is composed of 12 members and a Secretary, as stipulated in Rule
19 of the Mzumbe University Rules, 2007. The Council comprises the Chairman (non-executive),
seven non-executive members, one student representative, one member representing Mzumbe
University Academic Staff Association, one member representing administrative staff, one
member representing the workers’ trade union, and the Vice Chancellor. During the year under
review, the council members were appointed effective from 11 June 2019 except for the
Chairman who was appointed in August 2020 and his chairmanship was expected to end on
August 2024. However, the Council chairman died on 16 September 2021 and from 17
September 2022 to 19 May 2022 the University Council was led by the Vice Chairman. On 20
May 2022 the new University Council Chairman was appointed and her chairmanship is expected
to end on 19 May 2026.

The governance, control and administration of the University is vested in the University
Council whose Chairperson is an appointee of the President of the United Republic of
Tanzania as provided in Mzumbe University Rules 2007. The other members of the Council are
appointed by the Minister responsible for Education, Science and Technology.

The Council’s key functions and responsibilities are to ensure that:

2.26.1.1 The property of the University is administered in such a manner and for such
purposes as in the opinion of the Council may be necessary or desirable for the
promotion of the best interest of the University.

2.26.1.2 The University has clear strategic goals and objectives.

2.26.1.3 The Vice Chancellor is held to account in achieving the goals and objectives.
2.26.1.4 The University financial position is sound in the short- and long-term.

2.26.1.5 No fees are set and no financial appropriations made, without Council approval.
2.26.1.6 Risk management and internal controls are in place.

2.26.1.7  All the University’s members (staff and students), alumni, donors, customers, and
suppliers are treated in an appropriate manner.

2.26.1.8 The University complies with all relevant laws, regulations and accounting
policies.

2.26.1,9 The committees and sub-committees necessary to achieve the above are in place,
are properly constituted and have appropriate terms of reference and reporting
procedures.
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During the year, no conflict of interest existed between the Council members and the
University. The following are the members of the Council who served the University during
the year under review:

Table 2: Members who served in the University Council during the year under review

S/N | Name Position Ag | Qualification Nationality | Appointment
e /Resignation
1. | Prof,  Saida | Chairman | 73 | PhD in Languages and Linguistics Tanzanian | 20.05.2022 -
Othman (University of Dar s Salaam) 19.05.2026
2. | CPAPius Vice 56 | CPA (T), Postgraduate Diploma in| Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Maneno Chairman Management 10.06.2022
{Maastricht School of Management,
The Netherlands, 1998), Master’s in
International Accounting & Financial
Management (MAcc), (University of]
Glasgow, UK, 1996)
3. Dr.Laurean Member 63 | PhD in Political Science (University | Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Ndumbaro of Florida, USA, 1998) 10.06.2022
4. | Ms.Gloriosa Member 63 | ADCA (Mzumbe University, Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Maganga Tanzania, 1983) 10.06.2022
5. Prof.Lughano | Member 62 | PhD in Veterinary Medicine (KVL, Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Kusiluka Denmark, 2000) 10.06.2022
6. Dr.Wilhelm Member 51 | PhD in Sociology of Law (University | Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Leornard of Groningen, The Netherlands, 10.06.2022
7. Dr. Charles | Member 53 | PhD in Finance (University of Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Mwamwaja Nairobi, Kenya, 2014) 10.06.2022
8. | Prof.Bernadet | Member 56 | PhD in Political Science (University| Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
ha of California, 10.06.2022
Killian USA, 2001)
9. | Ms. Judith Member 58 | MA Information Studies (Tumaini Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Newa University, Dar es Salaam) 10.06.2022
10. | CPA Jane Member 37 | CPA (T), Master of Science in Tanzanian | 11.06.2019 -
Moshi Accounting and 10.06.2022
Finance (Mzumbe University, 20156)
11, | Dr, Zuwena Member 50| PhD in Public Administration | Tanzanian | 01.07.2021 -
Kilugwe Botswana, Gaborone- Botswana, 10.06.2022
12. | Mr. George Member 25 | Mzumbe  University  Students’ | Tanzanian | 01.07.2021-
Lubeleje President 10.06.2022
13. | Mr. Inhocent | Ag. 42 | Master of Laws( Stellenbosch Tanzanian | 25.05.2021-
Mgeta Secretary University, Cape Town South Africa, 10.06.2022

Source: Council meeting minutes 2021/22

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Council held a total of six meetings; four ordinary
and two special meetings. In these meetings, the Council approved the following important
matters:
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2.26.1.10
2.26.1.11
2.26.1.12
2.26.1.13
2.26.1.14
2.26.1.15
2.26.1.16
2.26.1.17
2.26.1.18
2.26.1.19
2.26.1.20
2.26.1.21
2.26.1.22
2.26.1.23
2.26.1.24

2.26.1.25

2.26.1.26

2.26.1.27
2.26.1.28
2.26.1.29
2.26.1.30

2.26.1.31

Resources and Infrastructure Development Plan.

Staff recruitment, training, promotions and disciplinary issues;
Report on students’ admission and registration for the academic year 2021/22
Medium Term Expenditure Framework 2021/22-2023/24.

Graduates for the academic year 2020/21.

Adoption of Financial Statements for the year 2020/21.

University budget for the financial year 2022/23.

Annual Procurement Plan for the financial year 2022/23.

Internal Audit Annual Plan for the year 2021/22.

Annual Internal Audit report for the financial year 2021/22

Audit Committee Annual Report for the financial year 2020/21
Mzumbe University Academic calendar for the academic year 2021/22
Mid-Year Strategic Plan Implementation Report for the year 2021/22.
Report of Board of Survey for the financial year 2020/21

Mzumbe University Quality Assurance Handbook, 2021

Proposal to confer PhD honoris causa in Leadership to Her Excellency, Samia
Suluhu Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania in 2021

Mzumbe University Procedures for Quality Assurance on Research, Consultancy and
Outreach Services, 2022

Report on the approved Mzumbe University Organizational Structure of 2022
Mzumbe University Guidelines for Assessing Teaching Effectiveness, 2022,
Mzumbe University E-Learning Guidelines, 2022.

Mzumbe University Health Policy, 2022

Mzumbe University Community Engagement and Outreach Policy, 2022
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2.26.1.32
2.26.1.33
2.26.1.34
2.26.1.35
2.26.1.36
2.26.1.37

2.26.1.38
Procedures, 2022

Mzumbe University Research Agenda 2022

Mzumbe University Staff Retention Policy, 2022.

Mzumbe University Intellectual Property Policy, 2022

Mzumbe University Guidelines for Business Case Studies 2022
Mzumbe University Corporate Master Plan for 2021/22 - 2045/46

Mzumbe University 5th Corporate Strategic Plan for 2021/22 - 2025/26

Mzumbe University Human Resource Management Policy and Operational

Attendance of the Members of the Council in meetings of the Council during the year under

review is shown in Table 3:

Table 3: Attendance of the University Council Members in Meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June

2022

S/N Name

Meetings

118% | 119%

120t

1213t 122

123

05.10.2021
25.11.2021
{Graduation)

10.12.2021%

20.01.2022
24.03.2022

09.64,2022

Prof. Saida Y.Othman

=z
>
=
>

=z
>

=z
>

CPA Pius Maneno

Dr. Laurean Ndumbaro

Ms. Gloriosa Maganga

Prof. Lughano Kusiluka

Dr. Wilhelm Leonard

Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja

Prof. Bernadetha Killian

Ms. Judith Newa

= B Bad e B o el B d et

0. CPA Jane Moshi

Dr. Zuwena Kilugwe

12. Mr. George Lubeleje

13. Mr. Innocent Mgeta

o| 9| >»| v W v O O 9 v 9o
0| 9| | o v > O > OO > ©

| U| OO 9| U U U U W U T

| ©| ©| ©| v| ©| ©| ©| ©| | || Z| (Special)

o| o Ol » Ol v O > U O OO

| O 9| 9| W O 9 O v W W O O

Source: Council meeting minutes 2021/22

KEY: P=Present; A=absent with apology; NA= Not a member

2.27 COUNCIL COMMITTEE

In the execution of its policy and decision-making roles, the Council is assisted by
various technical committees. These include the Audit Committee, Finance and
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Development Planning Committee, Appointments and Staff Development
Committee, Quality Assurance Committee, Students’ Welfare Committee,
Senate, Tender Board and Management Committee.

2.28 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reviews significant accounting policies and financial
reporting systems to ensure that they are adequate and are always complied
with. it reviews the adequacy of internal control systems and monitors the
implementation of actions to address issues raised by internal and external

auditors. The Committee consists of four members of the Council and the Council
secretary. The Committee is chaired by an appointee of the University Council.

The University Audit Committee’s responsibilities are to:

2.28.1.1  Ensure that there is an effective process for assessing and managing risks;

2.28.1.2 Review and approve the scope of the internal audit programme;

2.28.1.3 Review the scope of the audit conducted by the independent external auditors;

2.28.1.4  Assess the financial statements for reasonability and accuracy and for compliance
with accounting policies and regulations laid down by the Council;

2.28.1.5 Recommend to the Council the approval of the Annual Report, incorporating the
Annual Financial Statements;

2.28.1.6 Review, with the help of an Internal Audit, the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control and governance processes;

2.28.1.7 Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual
transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements;

2.28.1.8 Consider the effectiveness of the University’s risk management and internal
control system, including information technology security and control;

2.28.1.9 Gain a thorough understanding of The Risk Management Policy, Risk Management
Strategy, Risk Management Implementation Plan, and Fraud Risk Management
Policy of the institution to enable them add value to the risk management process
when making recommendations to improve the process;

2.28.1.10 Review with Management and the Director of Internal Audit, the Charter, budget,
staffing, skills and organizational structure of the internal audit activity;

2.28.1.11 Discuss with the external auditor its proposed strategy for the year with reference
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2.28.1.12

2.28.1.13

2.28.1.14

2.28.1.15

2.28.1.16

to areas of risk and materiality. The Committee could suggest areas that it
believes require additional audit coverage;

Conduct a review of the extent to which previously reported findings by the
external auditor have been addressed by MU;

Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations and the results of the Management's investigation and follow-up
(including disciplinary action) of any instances of noncompliance;

Regularly, report to the Council about Committee’s activities, issues, and related
recommendations;

Ensure that a combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated
approach to all assurance activities; and

Undertake other functions, roles and responsibilities as stipulated in the Audit
Committee Charter.

The Director of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Committee. The following were
members of the Committee who served the University during the year under review:

Table 4: Members of the Audit Committee

S/N Name Position Nationality Appointment/Resignation
1. CPA Pius Maneno Chairperson | Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06,2022
2. Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
3. Ms. Gloriosa Maganga Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
4, Dr, Wilhelm Leonard Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
5. Mr. Innocent Mgeta Secretary Tanzanian 25.05-2021-10.06.2022

Source: Audit committee meeting minutes 2021/22

During the year, the Committee held a total of six (6) meetings; four (4) ordinary and two (2)
special meetings. In these meetings it deliberated and recommended to the Council for
approval the following:

2.28.1.16.1

2.28.1.16.2

2.28.1.16.3

Internal Audit Annual Plan for the financial year 2021/22.
External Audit Annual Plan for the financial year 2020/21.

Draft financial statements for the year 2020/21.

2.28.1.16.4 Audited financial statements for the year 2020/21.

2.28.1.16.5 The Management Letter from the External Auditors for the year 2020/21.

2.28.1.16.6  Report on financial and budgetary control audit for the year 2021/22,
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2.28.1.16.7 AQuarterly Procurement Audit reports for the year 2021/22.
2.28.1.16.8  Annual Internal Audit report for the financial year 2021/22
2.78.1.16.9  Audit Committee Annual Report for the financial year 2021/22

Members of the Audit Committee attended the meeting of the Committee as shown in Table 5
below,

Table 5: Attendance of the Audit Committee Members in Meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June
2022

Meetings
S/N Name

g 3 ShaEe
A 2 5 |g Lo | @ A

mg IR |32

@ “
&l ~ ~ ~ N N
=] =) o (=] =) =
o] B o o o] x|
N s o - ol e
Q g ¥ r = e
~ N ~ 3 8 =
1. CPA Pius Maneno P P P P p P
2, Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja A P P P P A
3. Ms. Gloriosa Maganga A P P P P P
4, Dr. Wilhelm Leonard P P A P P P
5. Mr. Innocent Mgeta P P P P P P

Source: Audit committee meeting minutes 2021/22
KEY: P=Present; A=absent with apology
2,28.2 FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Finance and Development Planning Committee (FDPC) is a standing committee of the
Council and is chaired by a member of the Council. The FDPC advises the Council on matters
related to strategic planning, resource mobilization and development projects, budgeting,
and physical and financial resource management. The members of the Committee include:

() Chairman appointed from amongst the members of the Council;
{(ii) Vice Chancellor;
(iii) Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters;

(iv) Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for administrative and financial matters
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Commissioner for the Budget;

(v) Director in-charge of Policy and Planning matters in the Ministry responsible
for Education, Science and Technology;

{vi) Member from the Tanzania Education Authority;

(vii) Director of Finance of the University;

(viii) Director of Internal Audit of the University;

(ix) One Member representing the University Students’ Organisation;
(x) One Member representing the Academic Staff Association;

(xi) One Member represents the Administrative Staff of the University.

The following were members of the Committee who served the University during the year
under review:

Table 6; Members of the Finance and Development Planning Committee

S/N Name Position Nationality | Appointment/Resignation
1. Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja Chairperson | Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
2. Prof. Lughano J.M. Kusiluka Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
3. Prof. William Mwegoha Member Tanzanian 01.80.2021-10.06.2022
4, Prof. Allen R.Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
5. Mr. Andekirwa Msuya Member Tanzanian 11.06,2019-10.06.2022
6. CPA Bahati Geuzye Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
7. Mr. Atupele Mwambene Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
8. CPA Afwilile Angolile Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
9. Mr. Erasto P, Jacob Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-30.06.2022
10. CPA Mwanjaa S. Lyezia Secretary Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022

Source: Finance and development planning committee meeting minutes for 2021/22

During the year, the committee held a total of six meetings; four (4) ordinary and two (2)
special meetings. In these meetings it deliberated and recommended to the Council for
approval the following:

i.  The budget for the financial year 2022/23.

ii.  Annual Procurement Plan for the year 2022/23.

jii.  Annual Action Plan for the financial year 2022/23
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iv,  Quarterly reports on Financial and Budgetary performance for the year 2021/22.

v.  Reports of quarterly Implementation of Procurement Plan for the year2021/22.

vi.  Quarterly Resources Mobilization Reports for2021/22.

vii.  Reports on quarterly Projects implementation for the year 2021/22.

Attendance of the Members of the Finance and Development Planning Committee in the
committee meetings during the year under review is shown in table 7 below.

Table 7: Attendance of the Finance and Planning Development Committee Members in Meetings

from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

96%" 97th 9gth 99th 100t 101
S/N | Name (Special) (Special)
26.08.2021 | 09.11.2021 | 15.12.2021 | 13.01.2022 | 03.03.202 | 18.05.2
2 022
1. | Dr. Charles A, P P P P P P
Mwamwaja
2. | Prof. Lughano J.M. P P P P P P
Kusiluka
3. | Prof. William Mwegoha P P P P P P
4, | Prof, Allen R. Mushi P P P P P P
5. | Mr. Andekirwa Msuya P P P P P P
6. | CPA Bahati Geuzye P A P A P P
FARET Atupele P A A P A P
Mwambene
8. | CPA Afwilile Angolile p p P P P P
' 9. | Mr, Erasto P.Jacob P P P P P P
| 10. | CPA Mwanjaa S. Lyezia P P P P

Source: Finance and development planning committee meeting minutes for 2021/22

KEY:

P=Present; A= Absent with apology

2.28.3 APPOINTMENTS AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The appointments and staff development committee advises the council on staff recruitment,
training and development, welfare, discipline and other policy and strategic matters related
to human resource management at the University. The Committee is composed of ten
members, namely:

(i} The Vice Chancellor who is also the Chairman;

(i) Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters;
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(ii) Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for administrative and financial matters;
(iv) Two members who are appointees of the Council;

(v) One representative of academic staff from each University Campus; one from
Main Campus, one from Dar es Salaam Campus College and one from Mbeya
Campus Colleges ;

(vi) One representative of administrative staff from each University Campus; one
from Main Campus, one from Dar es Salaam Campus College and one from
Mbeya Campus Colleges;

(vii) One representative of Public Universities.
(viii) One representative of the Ministry responsible for Higher Learning Education

Members of the appointment and staff development committee who served the University
during the year under review are shown in Table 8 below

Table 8: Members of the Appointments and Staff Development Committee

S/N Name Pasition Nationality | Appointment/Resignation
1. Prof. Lughano J. M. Kusiluka Chairperson | Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
2, Prof. William Mwegoha Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
3. Prof. Allen R. Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
4, Dr. Laurean Ndumbaro Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
5. Dr. Zuwena Kilugwe Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
6. Dr. Kanty P.F. Mtey Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
7. Dr. Michael Mangula Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
8. Dr. Proscovia Kamungisha Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
9, Ms, Stella J. Mwaiswaga Secretary Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022

Source: Appointments and staff development committee meeting minutes for 2021/22

During the year, the committee held a total of six meetings; five ordinary and one meeting by
circular resolution. In these meetings; it deliberated and recommended to the Council for
approval the following:

(i) The Open Performance Review and Appraisal System (OPRAS) report.
(i) Staff recruitment, training and development reports;

(iii) Staff disciplinary issues;

(iv) Proposal for staff promotions.

Attendance of the members of the appointments and staff development in committee
meetings during the year under review.

61

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/MU/2021/22



MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

Table 9: Attendance of the appointments and staff development committee members in meetings
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

S/N Meetings
Name
36th 37th agth 39th 4oth 41St
(Circular)
09,08.2021 | 01.11.202 | 07.01.20 25.02.202 28.04.2 13.05.20
1 22 2 022 22
1. Prof. Lughano J. M. Kusiluka P P p P P P
2. Prof. William Mwegoha P P P P P P
3. Prof. Allen R. Mushi P P P P P P
4, Dr. Laurean Ndumbaro P A p P A P
5. Dr. Zuwena Kilugwe P P p P P P
6. Dr.Kanty P, F. Mtey P P P P A P
7. Dr. Michael Mangula P P P P P P
8. Dr. Proscovia Kamugisha P P P P P P
9. Ms. Stella J. Mwaiswaga P P P P P P

Source: Appointments and staff development committee rmeeting minutes for 2021/22

KEY: P=Present; A= absent with apology
2.28.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

The Quality Assurance Committee focuses on promoting a quality culture within the University
and encompasses issues of quality in all the core functions of the University including academic
delivery, research, publication, consultancy, outreach as well as administrative services
offered by Mzumbe University to internal and external clients and stakeholders. The
committee comprises 15 members including two members, who are appointees of the Council.
However, during the year under review, there was no representative from the Ministry of
Education, Science and Technology. The committee is chaired by an appointee of the
University Council. Other members of the committee include: -

0]
(i)
(i)
(iv)
W)
(vi)
(vii)

(v

(ix)
()

(xi}
(xii)

Representative from the Ministry of Education, Science and Technology,

Vice Chancellor,

Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for Academic matters,

Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for Administrative and financialmatters,
One member from accredited universities in Tanzania,

Representative of the Senate,

The Director responsible for Finance of the University

Representative from Mzumbe University Academic Staff Association (MUASA),
Representative from Mzumbe University Administrative Staff,

Three representatives from Mzumbe University Students’ Organization (MUSO),
Representative of the Trade Union,

Director of Quality Assurance who is the Secretary to the Committee.
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Members of the Quality Assurance Committee who served during the year under review are
shown in the Table 10 below.

Table 10: Members of the quality assurance committee

S/N | Name Position Nationality Appointment/Resignation
1. Prof. Bernadeta Killian Chairperson | Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
2. Prof. Lughano J.M. Kusiluka | Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
3. Prof. William Mwegoha Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
4, Prof. Allen R.Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
5. Prof. Peter Gillah Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
6. Dr. Coretha Komba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
7. Dr. Frank Mchomvu Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
8. Dr. Hanifa Massawe Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
9. Dr. Adria Fuluge Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
10. | Mr.Jonas Baraka Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
11. | Mr.Yohana Pello Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
12. | Dr. Wilhelm Leonard Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
13. | Mr. Edmund Kakoki Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-60.06.2022
14. | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Secretary Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022

Source: Quality assurance comrnittee for 2021/22

The committee held four meetings during the year in which it deliberated and recommended
for approval the following matters to the Council:
i.  Quality Assurance Annual Implementation Report of 2020/21,
ii.  Quality Assurance Action Plan for 2021/22,
ifi.  Quality Assurance Mid-Year Performance Review of 2021/22.
Attendance of the members of the quality assurance in committee meetings during the year is
shown in Table 11 below.

Table 11: Attendance of the quality assurance committee members in meetings from 1 July 2021
to 30 June 2022
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Meetings
S/N Name 27t 28t 29t 30th
25.08.2021 | 02.11.2021 04.02.2022 | 21.04.2022
1 | Prof. Bernadeta Killian P P P P
2 | Prof. Lughano J.M. Kusiluka P P P P
3 | CPA Prof. Ganka D. Nyamsogoro P P P P
4 | CPA Prof. Ernest Kihanga P P P P
5 | Prof. Peter Gillah P P P P
6 | Dr. Coretha Komba P P P P
7 | Dr. Frank Mchomvu P P P P
8 | Dr. Hanifa Massawe P P P P
9 | Dr. Adria Fuluge P P P P
10 | Mr.Jonas Baraka P P P P
11 | Mr.Yohana Pello P P P P
12 | Dr. Wilhelm Leonard P A P P
13 | Mr. Edmund Kakoki P P P P
14 | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi P P P P

Source; Quality assurance committee for 2021/22

KEY: P=Present; A=Absent with apology

2.28.5 STUDENT WELFARE COMMITTEE

The students’ welfare committee assists the University Council in scrutinizing, advising,
recommending, or directing all matters that affect the general students’ welfare subject to
other policies, rules and regulations that govern the affairs of the University. The Committee
is chaired by an appointee of the University Council. Other members of the Committee
include: -

(M)

(ii)
(i)
(iv)

v)
President),
(vi)
(MUSO President),
(vii)
College,

One member from accredited universities in Tanzania,

Representative from the Ministry of Education, Science and Technology,
Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters,

Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for administrative and financial matters,

Two representatives of the Students Organization (MUSO President and Vice

One Students’ representative from Mzumbe University, Mbeya Campus College

One Students’ Representative from Mzumbe University, Dar es Salaam Campus
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(viti) Dean of Students from Mzumbe University, Dar es Salaam Campus College,
(ix)  Warden (An appointee of the Principal of Mbeya Campus College),

(x)  Director of Finance,

(xi)  Director of Quality Assurance,

(xii) The University Security Officer,

(xii)) Director of Health and Clinical Services,

(xiv) Director of Buildings and Estates, Mzumbe University, and

(xv)  Director of Students’ Welfare (Secretary).

Members of the Students’ Welfare Committee who served the University during the year
under review are shown in Table 12 below:

Table 12: Members of the Students’ Welfare Committee

S/N [ Name Position Nationality | Appointment/ Resignation
1. Dr. Wilhelm Leonard Chairperson | Tanzanian 21.02.2020-10.06.2022
2. Prof. William Mwegoha Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
3. Prof. Allen R. Mushi | Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
4, Dr. Kanty F.K. Mtey Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
5. CPA Jane Moshi Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022
6. Dr. Rajabu N. Mtilly Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
7. Mr. George Lubeleje Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
8. Ms.Husna A. Makenzi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
9. Mr. Florence Kalimbikulu Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06,2022
10. | CPA Mwanjaa S. Lyezia Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10,06.2022
11. | QS. Prosper Leonard Member Tanzanian 01.05.2021-10.06.2022
12, | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
13. | Insp. Mukaine A. Mani Member Tanzanian 11-06.2019-10.06.2022
14. | Mr. Jonas Baraka Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
15. | Mr. Songelaeli S. Mkumbo Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
16. | Ms. Zitta V. Mnyangi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
17. | Mrs. Mariam M. Mattao Secretary Tanzanian 11.06.2019-10.06.2022

Source: Students’ Welfare Committee meeting minutes 2021722

The Committee held five meetings during the year in which it deliberated and recommended
the following matters to the Council:

(i) Issues related to students’ welfare;

(i)  Security issues related to students;
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(i) Health issues related to students;

(iv) Issues related to the construction of students’ hostels;

(v) lIssues related to the construction of students’ lecture theaters and classrooms
(vi) Issues related to the rehabilitation of students’ hostels; and

Good governance seminar to the newly elected leaders of Mzumbe University Students
Organization. Attendance of the Members of the Students’ Welfare Committee in meetings
during the period under review is shown in Table 13 below:

Table 13: Attendance of the Students’ Welfare Committee Members in Meetings from 1 July 2021
to 30 June 2022

S/N Meetings
Name 16th 47th 18th 19th
18.02.20 | 10.05.20
24,08.2021 03.11.2021 22 22

1 br. Wilhelm Leonard P P P

2 | Prof. William Mwegoha P P P P
3 Prof. Allen R. Mushi P P P P
4 Dr. Kanty F.K. Mtey P P P P
5 CPA Jane Moshi P P P P
6 Dr. Rajabu N. Mtilly P P P P
7 Mr. George Lubeleje P P P P
8 Ms. Husna A. Makenzi P P P P
9 Mr. Florence Kalimbikulu P P P P
10 | CPA Mwanjaa 5. Lyezia P P P P
11 | QS. Prosper Leonard P P P P
12 | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi P P P P
13 | Insp. Mukaine A. Mani P P P P
14 | Mr.Jonas Baraka P P P P
15 | Mr. Songelaeli Mkumbo P P P P
16 | Ms. Zitta V. Mnyangi P P P P
17 | Mrs. Mariam M. Mattao P P P P

Source: Students’ Welfare Committee meeting minutes 2021/22
KEY: P= Present; A= absent with apology; NA= Not a member

2.28.6 SENATE

The Senate is the principal overall decision-making organ in respect of all academic matters
of the University. It is responsible for the academic work of the University in teaching,
research, consultancy and outreach activities as well as the regulation and superintendence of
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the education of the students of the University. The functions of the Senate as stipulated in
Rule 29 of the Mzumbe University Charter and Rules 2007 include to:

(a)

(b)
(©
(d)

()

(f)

()

(h)
(i)

)
(k)

(1)

(m)

Approve the syllabi for any programme leading to the conferment of any award of
the University,

Set, safeguard and maintain academic standards of the University;
Formulate and recommend to the Council by-laws governing the: -

the eligibility of persons for admission to, as well as their retention and promotion
in any course for a degree, diploma, certificate, or ather awards of the University,
and the conferment of any degree, and the granting of any diploma, certificate, or
other awards of the University,

the standard of proficiency to be gained in each examination for a degree, diploma,
certificate, or other awards of the University;

the conduct of examinations and the approval and declaration of examination
results;

Decide whether any candidate for a degree, diploma, certificate, or any other
award of the University has attained the standard of proficiency required or
otherwise a fit and proper person for the grant of the degree, diploma, certificate,
or other awards of the University;

Withdraw any award fraudulently obtained by any person from the University;

Consider recommendations made to it by any Academic Committee of a College or a
board of a faculty, school, institute, or directorate, as the case may be, and to take
such action on it as it may consider appropriate;

Make proposals to the Council on the academic affairs of the University;

Recommend to the Council the establishment or disestablishment of colleges,
faculties, schools, institutes, centres, units, or other academic bodies of the
University which may appear necessary for the growth and development of the
University;

Recommend to the Council the fee structure for the various programmes or courses
and services offered or provided by the University; Make rules governing such
matters as are within its power under the Charter or Universities Act.

Discharge such other functions as may be conferred upon it by or under the Charter
or as may be assigned by the Council.
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The Committee is chaired by the Vice Chancellor. Other members of the Committee include:

a)

b)

<)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)

)

m)

The Deputy Vice-Chancellor responsible for academic matters, who shall be the Vice
Chairman;

The Director of Higher education in the ministry of education, science and

technology;

The Deans of faculties and schools of the University;

One member of the Council appointed by the Chairman of the Council;

The Directors of institutes, directorates and campuses;

Principals of the colleges;

One member representing professional bodies;

One woman member representing public or private universities;

One woman member representing the Academic Staff Association of the University;

One member representing the Higher Education Students Loans Board;

One student representative from each faculty, institute or the like having academic
programmes for the courses offered by the University, provided that, at least, half of

them shall be female;

The President of the Students' Organization; and

One student leader from each campus of the University other than the main

campus.

Members of the Senate who served the University during the year under review are shown in
Table 14 below.

Table 14: Members of the University Senate

S/N | Name Position Nationality Appointmernt /Resignation
1. Prof. Lughano J.M. Kusiluka | Chairperson Tanzanian 03.06.2016 - 10.06.2022
2. Prof. William Mwegoha Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021 - 10.06.2022
3 Prof. Allen R. Mushi | Member Tanzanian 01.08.2021 - 10.06.2022
4, Dr. Orest Masue | Ag.Secretary Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
5. Prof. Bernadeta Killlian | Member Tanzanian 11.06.2019- 10.06.2022
6. Mr. Godfrey Mbanyi | Member Tanzanian 01.07.2018 - 10.06.2022
7. Prof. Henry Mollel | Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
8. Dr. Saraphina Bakta [ ‘Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
9, Dr. Ernest Mwasalwiba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
10. | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
11. | Dr. Harold Utouh Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
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12. | Dr. Mercy Komba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
13. | Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
14, | Dr. Kato Mushumbusi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
15. | Dr. Elizabeth L. Genda Member Tanzanian (01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
16. | Prof. Honest Ngowi Member Tanzania 01.07.2021 - 28.03.2022
17. | Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
18. | Dr. Joseph Sungau Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
19. | Dr. Stella Kinemo Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
20. | Mr. George Lubeleje Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
21. | Mr. Gidion Mitekaro Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
22. | Mr. Godson Mganga Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
23. | Mr. Athumani Ramadhani Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
24, | Mr. Issa Makongoro Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
25. | Mr. Abdillah Athuman Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
26. | Mr. Songaeli Mkumbo | Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
27. | Mr. Jonas Baraka Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
28. | Mr. Mfaume B. Mfaume Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021 - 10.06.2022
29. | Mr. Nyanda Lutubija Member Tanzanian 01,07.2021 - 10.06.2022

Source:; Senate meeting minutes 2021/22

During the period, the Senate held seven meetings; five ordinary and two special meetings. In
these meetings, the Senate discussed, deliberated and approved the following matters:

(i)
(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

{vii)

End of Semester | and || Examination Results;
Academic calendar for the academic year2021/22;

Admission of students to Certificate, Diploma, Bachelors, Masters and PhD
programmes;

Proposal to confer PhD honoris causa in Leadership to Her Excellency, Samia Suluhu
Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania in2021

Examination appeals results;
List of graduates for the 2020/21;

Proposal for the Community Engagement and Outreach Policy;

(viii) Proposal for the Mzumbe University E-Learning Guidelines;

(ix)

x)
(xi)

Proposal for the Mzumbe University Guidelines for Monitoring and Evaluation of the
Quality of Mzumbe University Consultancy and Outreach Services;

Proposal for the Mzumbe University Alumni Engagement Strategy

Reports from Senate Research, Publications and Postgraduate Studies Committee for
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the academic year 2021/22;

(xii) Reports from Senate Undergraduate Studies Committee for the academic year
2021/22; and

(xiii) Reports from Senate Consultancy and Knowledge Exchange Committee for the
academic year 2021/22.

Members of the Senate attended meetings of the Committee during the year is as shown in
able 15 below:

Table 15: Attendance of the Senate Members to Meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

11. Dr. Harold Utouh

12, Dr. Mercy Komba

13. Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora

14, Dr. Kato Mushumbusi

15. Dr. Elizabeth L. Genda

Meetings
93rd 95th gsth
(Spe 94t | (Special) g6t | 97th ggth
cial)
5/N | Name b ~ ~ a8
o =) Q (=)
~ A N B
o < m <
= N < =
o > o o
- - (=] o~
1. Prof. Lughano J.M. Kusiluka P
2. Prof. William Mwegoha P
3. Prof. Allen R. Mushi P
4, Dr. Orest Masue P
5. Prof. Bernadeta Killian P
6. Mr. Godfrey Mbanyi P
7. Prof. Henry Mollel P
8. Dr. Saraphina Bakta P
9. Dr. Ernest Mwasalwiba P
10. Dr. Lawrencia Mushi P
A
P
P
P
P

U| U ©| ©| W W V| U U Y W Y vV v Y v o v o v o oo o o 23.09.2021
Y| V| Y| U B O U U WV Y O U O WO U O WO v o o9 e 19.11.2021
| | U| ©| V| © U Ul W W U O U 9 U v U o o o o o o o 9 28.01.2022

0| U ©U| U 9V U U U O W U WU v W W O Ul v O W u v v v
| O | U W U O U U W Y v U 9 9 v U U O U v o o v w
| 0| O| @ W U U O W Y U O v v W9 o o 9w w o v o 9o

16 Prof. Honest Ngowi PA
17 Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula P
18. Dr. Joseph Sungau P
19. Dr. Stella Kinemo P
20. Mr. George Lubelege P
21, Mr. Gidion Mitekaro P
22. Mr. Godson Mganga P
23. Mr. Athumani Ramadhani P
24, Mr. Issa Makongoro P
25. Mr. Abdillah Athuman P
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26. Mr. Songaeli Mkumbo

27. Mr. Jonas Baraka

28. Mr. Mfaume B. Mfaume

| O O w
0 O v
o v oo
| 9| vl w
0| ©| v o

| T 49| o

29. Mr. Nyanda Lutubija

o O o™

Source: Senate meeting minutes 2021/22
KEY: P=Present; A=Absent with apology; Passed away

2.28.6.1 Senate Sub -Committee

During the financial year 2020/21 the Mzumbe University Senate Sub-Committees, namely:
The Senate Undergraduate Studies Committee; The Senate Research, Postgraduate Studies
and Publication Committee and The Senate Consultancy and Knowledge Exchange Committee
continued with operations as per their establishment and provided more comprehensive of
matters transacted before submission to Senate.

2,28.6.1.1 Senate Undergraduate Studies Committee

This Committee is responsible for all matters relating to undergraduate studies, including
undergraduate admissions (entry), examinations, curriculum development/review, graduation
(exit) and other students’ academic-related issues.

The members of the Committee include:
(i) The Chairperson, the Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters;
(i) The Secretary, the Director responsible for Undergraduate Studies; and
(ili) Al Campus College Principals, Deans and Directors as members of the Committee,

Members of the Senate Undergraduate Studies Committee who served the University during the
year under review are shown in Table 16 below:

Table 16: Members of the senate undergraduate studies committee

S/N | Name Position Nationality Appointment/Resignation
1. | Prof. William Mwegoha Chairperson Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
2. | Dr. John Ubena Member Tanzanian 01.07.202%-10.06.2022
3. | Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
4, | Dr. Harold Utouh Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
5. | Dr. Joseph Sungau Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
6. | Prof. Henry Mollel Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
7. | Prof, Honest P. Ngowi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-28.03.2022
8. | Dr. Kato Mushumbusi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
9. | Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
10. | Dr. Lulu Genda Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
11, | Dr. Mercy Komba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
12 | Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
13. | Dr. Ernest S. Mwasalwiba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
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14, | Dr. Stella Kinemo Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
15. | Dr. Orest Masue Secretary Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
Source: Senate undergraduate studies committee meeting minutes 2021/22

During the year, the Committee held a total of four ordinary meetings. In these meetings it
deliberated and recommended to the Senate for approval the following:

(i} Declaration of end of semester Il/special/supplementary examinations results for the
academic year 2020/21;

(il) List of Undergraduate Graduands for the 20" MU Graduation ceremony;
(iii} Matters from Faculties/ Schools/Directorates and Campus Boards

(iv) List of applicants selected to join MU Bachelor Degree Programmes for the academic
year 2021/22;

(v) Report on Students’ Admission and Registration for the academic year 2021/22;
(vi) The proposed new undergraduate programmes;

Declaration of end of semester 1 examinations results for the academic year 2021/22 and;

Table 17: Attendance of the senate undergraduate studies committee members in meetings from 1
July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Meetings

S/N Name 11th 12th 13th 14th

Prof. William Mwegoha

Dr. Saraphina Bakta

Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula

Dr. Harold Utouh

Dr. Joseph Sungau

Prof. Henry Mollel

Prof. Honest P. Ngowi

oo | o | k| By

Dr. Kato Mushumbusi

0

Dr. Lawrencia Mushi

—
o

Dr. Lulu Genda

-
-

Dr. Mercy Komba

-
]

Dr. Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora

u| v| v| v| ©| v| ©| ©| ©| vl v ol o 27.09.2021
| ©| ©v| v| ©| ©| ©| ©| ©| ©v| o o o 11.11.2021

| v| ©| ©| v v vl © v v o o v 17.11.2021
| v| v| ©| vl v ©| v © © o v o 12.04.2022

-
(93]

Dr. Ernest S. Mwasalwiba
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14, Dr. Stella Kinemo P P P P
15. Dr. Dr. Orest Masue P P P P
Source: Source: Senate undergraduate studies committee meeting minutes 2021/22
KEY: P=Present
2.28.6.1.2 Senate Research, Publication and Postgraduate Studies Committee

This Committee is responsible with all matters related to research, publication and

postgraduate

studies,

including

admissions  (entry),

examinations,

curriculum

development/review, graduation (exit) and other students’ academic-related issues. The
members of the Committee include:

(i) The Chairperson, the Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters;

(ii) The Secretary, the Director responsible for research, publication and postgraduate

Studies; and

(iii) All Campus College Principals, Deans and Directors as members of the Committee.

Members of the Senate Research, Publication and Postgraduate Studies Committee who
served the University during the year under review are shown in Table 18 below:

Table 18: Members of the senate research, publication and postgraduate studies committee

S/N Name Position Nationality Appointment/Resignation
1. Prof. William Mwegoha Chairperson Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
2. Dr. Saraphina Bakta Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
3. Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
4, Dr. Harold Utouh Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
5. Dr. Joseph Sungau Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
6. Prof. Henry Mollel Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
7. Prof. Honest P. Ngowi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-28.03.2022
8. Dr. Kato Mushumbusi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
9. Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
10, Dr. Lulu Genda Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
1. br. Mercy Komba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
12 Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
13. Dr. Ernest S. Mwasalwiba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
14, Dr. Orest Masue Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
15. Dr. Stetla Kinemo Secretary Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022

Source: Senate research, publication and postgraduate studies committee meeting minutes

During the year, the Committee held four ordinary meetings and one special meeting. In
these meetings it deliberated and recommended to the Senate for approval the following:

(i)

(ii)

The registration of postgraduate students for the academic year 2021/22;

Progress report on development of new postgraduate programmes;
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(iii) Supervision and progress of postgraduate research students;

(iv) Research, postgraduate studies, and publication matters arising from campus colleges,
schools, directorate and faculties;

(v} Reports on the establishment of new programmes;

(vi) Declaration of the list of Postgraduate Graduands;

(vii) The list of publications for recognition during MU Convocation2021;

(viii) Report of the MU small Grants for 2020/21

{ix) Amendment of the Regulations and Guidelines of Postgraduate Programmes, 2020
(x) Mzumbe University Research Agenda 2022

(xi) Mzumbe University Guidelines for Business Case Studies 2022

Table 19: Attendance of the senate research, publication and postgraduate studies committee
members in meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Meetings
S/ | Name <th at gth 1nt 11t
(Special) h h h
10.09.2021 28.09.2021 12,11.2021 | 19.01.2022 | 13.04.2022
1. | Prof. William Mwegoha | P P P P P
2. | Dr. Saraphina Bakta P P P P P
3. | Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula | P P P P P
4, Dr. Harold Utouh P P P P P
5. | Dr. Joseph Sungau P P P P P
6. | Prof.Henry Mollel P P P P P
7. Prof. Honest P. Ngowi | P P P P PA
8. Dr. Kato Mushumbusi P P P P P
9. Dr. Lawrencia Mushi P P P P P
10. | Dr. Lulu Genda P P P P P
11. | Dr. Mercy Komba P P P P P
12. | Dr. Aurelia Kamuzora P P P P P
13. | Dr. Ernest S.|P P P P P
Mwasalwiba
14. | Dr. Orest Masue P P P P P
15. | Dr. Stella Kinemo P P P P P
Source: Senate research, publication and postgraduate studies committee meeting minutes
KEY: P=Present; A = Absent with apology; Passed away.
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2.28.6.1.3 Senate Consultancy and Knowledge Exchange Committee

This Committee is responsible for all matters related to consultancies, outreach activities
{Community Engagement), external linkages, short courses, collaboration, library and
coordination of alumni. The members of the Committee include:

2.28.6.1.3.1 The Chairperson, the Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic matters;

2.28.6.1.3.2 The Secretary, the Director responsible for External Linkages and Community
Engagement; and

2.28.6.1.3.3 AUl Campus College Principals, Deans and Directors as members of the
Committee.

Members of the Senate Consultancy and Knowledge Exchange Committee who served the
University during the year under review are shown in Table 20 below.

Table 20: Members of the senate consultancy and knowledge exchange committee

S/N Name Position Nationality Appointment/Resignation
1. Prof. William Mwegoha Chairperson Tanzanian 01.08.2021-10.06.2022
2, Dr. Saraphina Bakta Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
3. Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
4, Dr. Harold Utouh Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
5. Dr. Joseph Sungau Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
6. Prof. Henry Mollel Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
7. Prof. Honest P. Ngowi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-28.03.2022
8. Dr. Kato Mushumbusi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
9. Dr. Lawrencia Mushi Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
10. Dr. Lulu Genda Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
11, Dr. Mercy Komba Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
12 Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
13. Dr. Stella Kinemo Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
14, Dr. Orest Masue Member Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022
13. Dr. Ernest S. Mwasalwiba Secretary Tanzanian 01.07.2021-10.06.2022

Source: Senate consultancy and knowledge exchange committee meeting minutes 2021/22

During the year, the Committee held four (4) ordinary meetings. In these meetings, it
deliberated and recommended to the Senate for approval the following:

(i) Reports on Short courses and Consultancy from Campuses, Schools, Faculties, Institute,
and Directorates;

(ii) Report on Teaching Skills and E-learning from Campuses, Schools, Faculties, Institute,
and Directorates;
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(iii) Report on Marketing, Outreach, and Community Engagement from Campuses, Schools,
Faculties, Institute, and Directorates;

(iv) Report on the status of teaching facilities and e-resources adoption and utilization at
the University;

(v) Report from the Directorate of Library and Technical Services (DLTS).

(vi) Various Policies, guidelines and policies (See what was approved by the Council}

Table 21: Attendance of the senate consultancy and knowledge exchange committee members in
meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Meetings

SN Name 6th 7t 8th gth
29.09.2021 | 11.11.2021 | 21.01,2022 | 12.04.2022

1. Prof. William Mwegoha P P P P
2. Dr. Saraphina Bakta P P P P
3. Dr. Eliza Mwakasangula P P P P
4, Dr. Harold Utouh P P P P
5. Dr. Joseph Sungau P P P P
6. Prof. Henry Mollel P P D P
7. Prof. Honest P. Ngowi P P P P
8. Dr. Kato Mushumbusi P P P P
9. Dr. Lawrencia Mushi P P P P
10. Dr. Lulu Genda P P P P
11. Dr. Mercy Komba P P P P
12. Prof. Aurelia Kamuzora P P P P
13. Dr.Stella Kamuzora P P P P
14. Dr. Orest Masue P P P P
15. Dr. Ernest S. Mwasalwiba | P P P P

Source: Senate consultancy and knowledge exchange committee meeting minutes 2021/22

Key: P=Present

2.29 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The University Council consists of 12 members and the Secretary to the Council, apart from
the Vice Chancellor, no other members hold an executive position in the University. The
University Council takes overall responsibility for the University, including responsibility for
identifying key risk areas, considering and monitoring investment decisions, considering
significant financial matters, and reviewing the performance of management business plans
and budgets. The University Council is also responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive
system of internal control policies and procedures is operative, and for compliance with sound
corporate governance principles.
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The University Council is required to meet at least four times a year. The Council delegates
the day-to-day management of the University to the Vice Chancellor assisted by the Deputy
Vice Chancellors. The Deputy Vice Chancellors are invited to attend Council meetings and
facilitate the effective control of all the University’s operational activities, acting as a
medium of communication and coordination between various university units.

The University is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance. Council
members also recognize the importance of integrity, transparency and accountability. During
the year under review, the Governing Council of Mzumbe University has the following sub-
committees to ensure a high standard of corporate governance throughout the University.

2,30 THE UNIVERSITY TENDER BOARD

The University Tender Board is responsible for deliberating on the recommendations from the
Procurement Management Unit and approving the award of contracts; reviewing all
applications for variations, addenda, or amendments to ongoing contracts; approving
tendering and confract documents; approving procurement and disposal by tender
procedures; ensuring that the best practice in relation to procurement and disposal by tender
is strictly adhered by the University; and ensuring compliance with the Public Procurement Act,
2011(as amended in 2016) and its regulations of 2013 (as amended in 2016). The members of
the Tender Board include:

(i) Chairperson, who shall be one of the Dean or Director or the person of similar
standing and who shall be appointed by the Vice Chancellor;

(if) Six members who are deans, directors, or persons of similar standing within the
University and shall be appointed by the Vice Chancellor;

(iii) The Secretary of the Tender Board, who shall be the head of the University PMU.

Members of the University Tender Board who served during the year under review are shown
in Table 22,

Table 22: Members of the University Tender Board

S/N | Name Position Nationality Appointment /Resignation
1. Dr. Edward Makoye Chairperson Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.04.2024
2. Dr. Adolf Makauki Member Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.04.2024
3. Dr. Seraphina Bakta Member Tanzanian 16.04,2021-15.04.2024
4, Dr. Felichesmi Lyakurwa Member Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.04.2024
5. Dr. Gabriel Komba Member Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.04.2024
6. Ms. Stella Mwaiswaga Member Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.07.2022
7. CPA Mwanjaa Lyezia Member Tanzanian 16.10.2019-15.12.2022
3. Mr. Stanley Nonjela Ag. Secretary Tanzanian 16.04.2021-15.04.2024

Source: Tender board meeting minutes 2021/22
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During the year, the Board held a total of 20 meetings; six ordinary ones and fourteen special
ones. In these meetings it discussed, deliberated and recommended to the Vice Chancellor on
the following:

(i) The approvals for invitation, evaluation, negotiation and award on various goods/works
for the financial year 2021/22;

(i) The University Annual Procurement Plan for the financial year 2022/23; and

(ifi) Monthly implementation reports for the financial year 2021/22

Table 23: Attendance of the tender board members to meetings from 1 July 2021 to 30 June
2022

S/ | Name Meeﬁngs
EREERSR DS sislels sls sls 5 |5 |8
== 22 e |2 |2 R
- vl ) - e v e e N [l b Bl By NN NN o~ N o~
[ o N o~ o~ o~ N (N NN (NN ™|y ™ (N ™~ o~ ™
o lojlo e e |lo |o |ole |ole|lo|lo ele |e|lo | |lo |o
o~ o IeN o~ ™~ NN o™~ e [ NI R R [ B L] 4 | [ o~ o~
~ lale (o (o8 |= |6 | [Sle|ai|ed M (bv |8 |8 |8
o lelg @ |6 |~ [« |[~|o |ololelo ol |ele & |@ |o
o lelm |t (@ j0 |90 |[@|e |Slc|kls <l [Y]|m |8 |m |o
[ L= (2] m ™~ |O Lo B L= ~—|mN|O - |Q - [ [=] o~ ™~
1. | Dr. Edward Makoye |P |P|P [P |P |P |P |[P|P |PIP[P|P |[P|P [P|P [P |P |P
2. | Dr. Adolf Makauki P [P[P [P |A [P [P |A|P [P|A|P|P {P{P [P|P [P [P [P
3. | Dr. SeraphinaBakta |A |P|P |P |A |A |A |A|P |P|P|P/P {A{P |P|P |P [P |A
4, | Dr. Felichesmi P |AlA (P |P |P (P (P|(P |P|P|{P|P |P|P (P|P |P |[A |P
5. | Dr. Gabriel Komba A PP |P |P |P |P |A|lP |A|P|P|P |P|A |P|IP |P [P |P
6. | Ms. Stella Mwaiswaga |P |P|A |A |P (P |P |P|P |(P|P{P|P |P|P [P|P [P |A |A
7. | CPA Mwanjaa Lyezia (P [A|P |P |P |P |P |P|P (P|P|P|P |P|P |[P/A |P [P |A
8. | Mr. Stanley Nonjeta (P |[P|P |P [P |P |P |P|P |P|P|P|P |P|P |PIP [P [P |P

Source: Tender board meeting minutes 2021/22

Key: P= Present; A=absent with apology
2.31  THE UNIVERSITY ADMINISTRATION AND ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
2.31.1 The University Administration

Part lll of the University Charter provides the structure of the University administration. As per
the Charter, the Chancellor is the Head of the University, while the Vice- Chancellor is the
Chief Executive Officer with responsibility for the overall management of its affairs and the
implementation of policies and other functions. The Vice Chancellor is assisted by two
Deputies; Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for academic, research and consultancy, and
Deputy Vice Chancellor responsible for planning, finance and administration.
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In addition, the University is organized into Campus Colleges, Schools, Faculties, Directorates,
Institutes and Units as follows:

2.31.1.1
231111
2.31.1.1.2

2.31.1.2

2.31.

2.31.

1.2.1
1.2.2

2.31.1.3

2.31.

2.31.

1.3.1
1.3.2

2,31.1.3.3

2.31.1.4

2.31.

1.4.1

2.31.1.5

2.31.
2.31.
2.31
2.31.
2.31
2.31
2.31
2.31.
2.31.

1.5.1
1.5.2

.1.5.3

1.5.4

.1.5.5
.1.5.6
.1.5.7

1.5.8
1.5.9

2.31.1.6

2.31.
2.3,
2.31.
2.31
2.31.
2.31.
2.31.
2.31.
2.31.

1.6.1
1.6.2
1.6.3

.1.6.4

1.6.5
1.6.6
1.6.7
1.6.8
1.6.9

Campus Colleges
Dar es Salaam Campus College
Mbeya Campus College

Schools
School of Business
School of Public Administration and Management

Faculties

Faculty of Law

Faculty of Social Science

Faculty of Science and Technology

Institutes
Institute of Development Studies

Directorates

Directorate of Undergraduate Studies

Directorate of Research, Publication and Postgraduate Studies
Directorate of Library Services

Directorate of Public Services

Directorate of Administration and Human Resources Management
Directorate of Finance

Directorate of Planning

Directorate of Student’s Services

Directorate of Health and Clinical Services

Units

Quality Assurance Unit

Corporate Counsel Unit

Internal Audit Unit

Procurement Unit

Communication and Marketing Unit

Internationalization and Convocation Unit

Innovation, Entrepreneurship and Industrial Linkage Unit
Information Communication and Technology Unit

Estate Management Unit.
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2.31.2 Organization Structure

The current organizational structure of the University was approved by her Excellency

President of URT in January 2022

Figure 1: Organization Structure
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2.32 POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The University did not make any political donations during the year ended 30 June 2022.
Donations were made to institutions and charitable organizations to acknowledge University’s
responsibility to societal needs.

2.33 EMPLOYEE WELFARE
2.33.1 Management-Employees’ Relationship

The relationship between the employees and Management was good. There were no
unresolved complaints received by the Management from the employees during the year. A
healthy relationship continues to exist between University Management and the Workers’
Trade Union (THTU), Mzumbe Branch.

2.33.2 Training Facilities

The University believes that continuous learning and development are vital in ensuring that
staff has the right skills, knowledge and ability to increase efficiency and excellence. During
the year under review, one (01) member of staff was pursuing post- doctoral training, 62
were pursuing PhD training, 12 were on Masters, eight (08) were on undergraduate studies
and four were studying for Diploma. Several in-house training programmes were also
conducted during the year.

2.33.3 Medical Assistance

The University staff and up to four dependants and students are covered under the National
Health Insurance Fund (NHIF) scheme. Medical services are provided at the University Health
Centre (Main Campus) and dispensary (Mbeya Campus College).

2.33.4 Health and Safety

The University has a strong Directorate of Health and Clinical Services and Security Unit which
ensures that a strong culture of safety prevails all the time. As per the Security Management
Policy of 2020, a safe working environment is ensured for all employees, students and
contractors by providing adequate and personal protective equipment, training and
supervision as necessary.

The University continues to provide protective gear to its staff where necessary and ensures
the existence of sound policy and strategies pertaining to HIV and AIDS. Additionally, in the
financial year 2021/22, the University conducted awareness training to staff and students
with a focus on imparting knowledge and skills on HIV and non- communicable diseases
responsiveness at their workplaces.

In addition, following the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the University continued to
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conduct awareness training for staff and students on healthy guidelines to be observed in
order to fight the spread of the pandemic. Also, the University has installed necessary
systems to ensure safety in its operational areas.

Further, in order to ensure that the working environment is healthy and safe for the
employees and staff, the University has adopted Occupational Safety and Health Authority
(OSHA) standard in its Human Resources Policy and Strategy. This enables the University to
analyze all its work processes and identify potential risks to employees and students, and thus
employ mitigation measures.

2.33.5 Financial Assistance

The University provided office space to the Mzumbe University Savings and Credit Cooperative
Society (SACCOS), which provides loans/credit to its members. The University also acts as a
patron for loans that are extended to its staff by various financial institutions.

2.33.6 Persons with Disabilities

According to the University Disability Policy of 2015, Mzumbe University does not discriminate
against persons with disabilities. The University has five staff with disabilities among its
academic staff and administrative staff. There are also 36 students with disabilities at the
University. The University has put appropriate infrastructure in place to support persons with
disabilities. It is the policy of the University that training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. Also, in
the event the staff becomes disabled due to accidents, Workman'’s Compensation {provided
through Workers’ Compensation Fund) and Group Personal Accident (provided through
National Insurance Company) policies are provided to the staff.

2.33.7 Employees Benefit Plan

Mzumbe University contributes to pension schemes in favour of all employees who fall under
permanent and pensionable terms. Contributions to pension funds are recognized as an
expense in the period the employees render the related services. The contributions are made
to a defined contribution pension fund and are recognized as a liability when the employee
has provided service in exchange for the employee's benefit to be paid in the future.

Effective from July 2011, employers’ contributions have been remitted to the Pension Funds
by the Treasury in accordance with Circular letter No. C/BA54/328/01/15. Also, short-term
employees are members of the Public Service Social Security Fund and their contributions
(employer and employees) are remitted by the University on a monthly basis. The University
accrues the gratuity for Contract Employees at 25% of their basic pay on monthly basis.
However, from 2011/12 the gratuity is retained by the Treasury which is supposed to pay the
contract employees upon completion of their contract. Employees’ Social Security Costs for
the Year 2021/22 are shown in Note 33 of these financial statements.

82

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAIMUS2021/22



MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

The average number of employees during the year ended 30 June 2022 was 637 [Male 393
(61.7%): Female 244 (38.3%)] as compared to 618 [Male 377 (61%); Female 240 (39%)] as at 30
June 2021,

2.33.8 Gender Parity

The total number of employees at the end of the year 2021/22 was 637 as compared to 618 in
the year 2021/22. The distribution was 244 (38.3%) and 393 (61.7%) for fermales and males
respectively. The academic staff female/male percentage ratio stood at 31:69 as on 30 June

2022 the same as 31:69 on 30 June 2021 while that of administrative staff stood at 44:56 as
on 30 June 2022 compared to 46:54 on 30 June 2021. Students’ female/male percentage ratio
stood at 49:51 as on 30 June 2022, compared to the ratio of 48:52 on 30 June 2021. Tables 24
& 25 below indicate staff positions as at 30 June 2022

Table 24: Academic staff position as at 30 June 2022

S/N Name of School/Faculty/College/Institute Female| Male Total
1. School of Business 13 40 53
2. School of Public Administration and Management 14 25 39
3. Faculty of Law 7 14 21
4, Faculty of Science and Technology 7 29 36
5. Faculty of Social Science 13 23 36
6. Directorate of Library and Technical Services 5 8 13
7. Mbeya Campus College 20 43 63
8. Dar es Salaam Campus College 8 16 24
9. Institute of Development Studies 6 5 11
Total 93 203 296

Source: MU Directorate of Human Resources and Administration

Table 25: Administrative staff position as at 30 June 2022

S/N Name of Directorate/Unit Female| Male Total |
1. Directorate of Administration and Human Resource 47 41 88|
Management
2 Directorate of Finance 13 16| 29
3 Directorate of Health and Clinical Services 14 18 32
4, Internal Audit Unit 0 5 5
5. Directorate of Library Services 16 8 24
6 Estate Management Unit 1 16 17
7 Directorate of Student Services 4 12 16
8 Directorate of Planning 1 4 5
9. Communication and Marketing Unit 2 0 2
10. Information Communications Technology Unit 0 10 10
11. Directorate of Undergraduate Studies 6 4 10
12. Legal Service Unit 1 0 1
13. Procurement Management Unit 3 9 12
14, Security Unit 0 2 2
a3
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15. Dar es Salaam Campus College 20 23 43
16. Mbeya Campus College 23 22 45
Total 151 190 341

Source: MU Directorate of Human Resources and Administration

In addition, out of 637 staff, 57 staff are in a decision-making position (from Vice Chancellor
to Head of Departments), 36 are males and 21 are females. Affirmative action is being taken
to increase the number of females in senior leadership positions.

The distribution of MU Management team by age is as shown in Table 26.

Table 26: Management Distribution by age as at 30 June 2022

SI/N | Position 30-40 YRS | 41-50 YRS | 51-65 YRS | Total
1. Vice Chancellor 0 0 1 1
2. Deputy Vice Chancellors 0 0 2 2
3. Principals/ Deans/Directors 3 11 8 22
4, Head of Departments 2 23 7 32
Total 5 34 18 57

Source: Staff establishment 2021/2022

Management distribution by age as provided in Table 26 above indicates that more than 50%
of the managerial staff are aged below 50 years, which means that the University has a
comprehensive succession-planning programme. The programme is focusing on the
identification and development of a talent pool from internal staff with the potential to fill
key managerial positions in the organization.

2.34 ULTIMATE OWNER/SHAREHOLDER OF THE UNIVERSITY
The Government of the United Republic of Tanzania is the sole owner of the University.
2,35 STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

The University is not listed in the stock exchange market since it is a non-profit service
delivery institution.

2.36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The University complies with the existing management systems. This has resulted in smooth
operations of the University. For the University, the Council members and key Management
personnel are related parties. The related party transactions during the year included Council
expenses and key Management personnel emoluments. Key Management personnel is
described as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the University, directly or indirectly.

The related party transactions during the financial year 2021/22 amounted to TZS 1,
553,307,500 compared to TZS 1, 477,945,978 of the last financial year 2020/21. It was
increased by TZS 75,361,522 (5%) attributed to house and utility allowances paid to appointed
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staff.

The details of transactions and balances with related parties have been disclosed in Note 37
to the financial statements.

2.37 FIGHT AGAINST CORRUPTION

The University Management is committed to fighting corruption. Among measures instituted
to curb corruption, the University has Anti- Corruption Strategy of 2020 and a Code of Ethics
which have been distributed to all employees. The University’s student admission procedures
are transparent; recruitment of employees is done competitively by advertising in newspapers
and in accordance with the provisions of the Public Service Act, 2002 and the Public Services
Regulations of 2003. Procurement is done in accordance with the requirements of the Public
Procurement Act, 2011 (as amended in 2016) and its Regulations of 2013 (as amended in 2016)
and the Public Finance Act, 2001 (revised 2004). The University has established an Integrity
Committee to promote integrity amongst University community members and its members
received training on ethical issues from the Secretariat of Public Leaders Ethics.

2,38 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL PROGRAMME

Mzumbe University has a Policy on Environmental Management (2020), By-laws on
Environmental Conservation and a Committee to oversee the implementation of the
Environmental Policy. The University also has a culture of conserving the environment by
protecting natural trees on its estate and carrying out afforestation within its vicinity. The
University has about five (5) acres of man-made forest.

2,39 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The University has the responsibility to respond to community social needs. Mzumbe
University's Corporate Social Responsibility interventions included a commitment to active
participation in environmental protection and promotion of socio-economic development of
the society through the extension of financial support towards the implementation of
community development projects. During the year 2021/22, the University spent TZS 3M to
support a number of social and economic development initiatives implemented in Mvomero
District and Tanzania in general.

In addition to the above, through the project funded by the Centre of Diseases Controls (CDC)
to provide technical assistance to the Government of Tanzania and pubtic health institutions,
Mzumbe University has provided benefits in kind to society such as:-

2.39.1 Launching of Centre for Distance Education (CDE);

2.39.2 Supported the coordination national Field Epidemiology and Laboratory Training
Program (FELTP) steering committee;

2.39.3 Supported the workshop for national field supervisors to orient on supervisor roles
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and responsibilities;
2.39.4 Supported the outbreak investigation;

2.39.5 Supported sensitization meetings of Extended Community Health Qutcome (ECHO)
champions to promote active participation in the community of practice;

2.39.6 Supported hub and spoke connectivity to effectively participate in clinics;

2.39.7 Supported the active engagement of the National ECHO Project Coordinators in
coordination and implementation of Project ECHO activities; and

2.39.8 Supported dissemination of the results and products of the ECHO Evaluation
Protocol in Mwanza, Mbeya and Dodoma; and

2.40 SERIOUS PREJUDICIAL MATTERS

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there were no serious prejudicial matters to be reported
{2021/22: None).

2.41 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.41.1 Financial and Operational, Overview

During the financial year 2021/22, the final approved budget was TZS 48,916,508,880 and we
had a reallocation between votes amounting to TZS 2,876,290,722 for other charges. The
approved budget for other charges was TZS 15,738,455,000 and TZS 19,692,774,880 for
personal Emolument compared to the last financial year 2020/21 the approved budget was
TZS 41, 090,169.

2.41.2 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

The University collected TZS 29,721,368,110 as revenues from non-exchange transactions
during the financial year 2021/22 mainly from government subvention and development
partners’ funds compared to the previous financial year 2020/21 amounted to TZS
25,115,115,075. The mentioned amount increased by TZS 4,606,253,035 (18.34 %) this is
mainly attributed by the increase of the budget of the University. This is disclosed in note 22
of the Financial Statements.

2.41.3 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

The University collected TZS 23,788,292,626 as revenues from exchange transactions during
the financial year 2021/22 compared to the previous financial year 2020/21 amounted to TZS
20,881,546,104. The mentioned amount increased by TZS 2,906,746,522 (12.22 %) this is
mainly attributed by the increase in student enrolment to the University. This is disclosed in
note 23 of the Financial Statements.
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2.41.4 Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits

Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits comprise Salaries and other Personal allowances such
as electricity, house allowance, per diems, annual leave, moving expenses, and Utilities.
Facilitation allowances, risk allowance, food and refreshment, etc.

In the financial year 2021/22, the approved budget estimates for Wages, Salaries and
Employee benefits were TZS 25,062,553,780 and the total expenses amounted to TZS
29,357,008,352 compared to the last financial year 2020/21 which was TZS 27,742,462,500 for
approved estimates and the expenses to TZS 27,892,415,083. The amount spent was increased
by TZS 1,464,593,269 (5%) as compared to the previous financial year 2020/21. The variation
was caused by the new salary paid for promoted staff, transfers, etc. This is disclosed in note
24 to the financial statements.

2.41.5 Supplies and Consumables Used

The approved budget for supplies and Consumable used for the financial year 2021/22 was
TZS 15,954,798,100 and actual expenses were TZS 14,547,573,036 while in the financial year
2020/21 the approved budget was TZS 11,013,000,400 and actual expenses were TZS
10,111,178,111, It was increased by 4,436,394,924 (43%) due to an increase of the budget for
the mentioned items in the financial year 2021/22 to facilitate various operations of projects
managements. This is disclosed in note 25 of the financial statements.

2.41,6 Routine Repair and Maintenance Services

The item, maintenance services include - air conditioner- maintenance, repair of computers
and other related equipment, made to casual labour, panel and shop repair material and
consultancy fees, etc. The approved budget for the mentioned items during the financial year
2021/22 was TZ5 923,500,000 and the actual expenditure was TZS 951,324,431 while the
approved budget for the financial year 2020/21 was TZS 966,576,703 and the actual
expenditure was TZS 1,777,229,630. The mentioned item above was decreased TZS
825,905,199 (46%). This decrease was caused by the decrease in the budget for routine
maintenance and repair; in addition, to the decreased consumption of direct labour, and
spare parts. This is disclosed in note 26 of the financial statements.

2.41.7 Depreciation Expenses

During the Financial year 2021/22, the depreciation charged on Office buildings and
structures, Roads, Sewer System, Motor Vehicles Administrative, Motorbikes Motorcycles and
bicycles, Hardware servers and equipment incl. desktops laptops UPS, Data communication
centres networks and facilities, Plant and Machinery, Office Furniture and Fittings and Library
Books amounting to TZS 3,306,912,234 (that is Office buildings and structures
TZ51,369,235,239, Roads TZ523,802,453, Sewer System TZS 50,792,204, Motor Vehicles
Administrative TZS 649,909,379.00 Motorbikes Motorcycles and bicycles TZS 713,762,
Hardware servers and equipment including desktops laptops UPS TZS 302,176,573 Data
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communication centres networks and facilities TZS 48,559,710, Plant and Machinery TZS
146,500,644, Office Furniture and Fittings TZS 653,164,643 and Library Books TZS 62,057,627)
while in the previous financial year 2020/21 depreciation was TZS 3,173,799,293, the current
year depreciation increased due to an increase of PPE items at the University. This is
disclosed in note 27 of the financial statements.

2.41.8 Amortization of Intangible Assets

During the Financial year 2021/22, the amortization charged on computer software amounted
to TZS 39,217,358 while in the previous financial year 2020/21 amortisation was TZS
51,335,307. This is disclosed in note 28 of the financial statements.

2.41.9 Other Expenses

Other expenses include motor vehicle and property insurance expenses, a donation to a self-
help scheme, and contribution to Consolidated Fund. During the Financial year 2021/22, the
approved budget was TZS 720,00§;800, and the University spent TZS 650,056,132 on the
named above activities. The approved budget for the previous financial of 2020/21 was

TZS 850,640,000 and the actual expenditures was TZS 551,960,620 the amount spent in the
financial year 2021/22 was increased by TZS 98,095,512 (17.9%). This is disclosed in note 29
of the financial statements,

2.41.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

These are cash balances at end of the financial year it includes bank balances of recurrent
and deposit accounts. During the financial year, 2021/22 the cash and cash equivalent was
TZS 8,428,879,759 compared to the previous financial year 2020/21 amounted to TZS
6,187,991,623. The cash and cash equivalent in the year under review was for commitment
for development projects in the financial year 2021/22. This is disclosed in note 10 of the
financial statements.

2.41.11 Receivables

The University has recorded receivables amounting to TZS 2,759,435,489 in the financial year
2021/22 compared to TZS 1,934,190,760 in the financial year 2020/21. It was increased by
TZS 825,244,729 (42.67%). The increased balance of receivables was caused by the
uncollected amount of tuition fee. This is disclosed in Note 11 of the financial statements.

2.41.12 Inventories

The University has recorded an inventory amounting to TZS 907,589,727 in the financial year
2021/22 compared to TZS 591,122,176 in the financial year 2020/21. It was increased by TZS
316,467,551 (53.54 %). The increased balance of inventories was caused by bulk purchases of
inventory and this is disclosed in Note 12 of the financial statements.
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2.41.13 Prepayments

During the financial year 2021/22, the University paid in advance amounted to TZ5
383,940,755 for procurement of Motor Vehicles and fuel to GPSA, while in the financial year
2020/21 the prepayment to GPSA was TZS 23,011,313 This is disclosed in the note 13 of the
financial statements.

2.41.14 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment comprise Land, Buildings, Plant and Machinery, Motor
Vehicles, Furniture and Fittings, and Office Equipment pursuant to IPSAS 17. The approved
budget for the acquisition of PPE during the financial year 2021/22 was TZ$ 2,050,000,000
and the actual expenditure was TZS 2,788,994,674 while the approved budget for PPE in the
financial year 2020/21 was TZS 3,751,190,000 and the actual expenditure was TZS
3,905,936,378. The Net Book Value of PPE at the end of the financial year 2021/22 was TZ5
76,267,329,845 after deducting accumulated depreciation of TZS 20,668,556,027 for the
previous years and TZS 3,306,912,234 depreciation charges for the financial year 2021/22,
while in the financial year 2020/21 the NBV was TZS 76,941,524,308 after deducting
accumulated depreciation amounting to TZS 17,553,435,387. The value of PPE was slightly
changed as shown above due to an increase in the depreciation of assets compared to the last
financial year and the acquisition of new assets. This is disclosed in note 14 in the financial
statements.

2.41.15 Intangibles

Intangible assets comprises computer software licenses pursuant to IPSAS 31. During the
financial year under review, no additional intangibles were acquired. The Net Book Value of
Intangibles at the end of the financial year 2021/22 was TZS 215,270,443 after deducting
accumulated amortization of TZS 194,438,519 of the previous years and TZS 39,217,358
amortization charges for the financial year 2021/22, while in the financial year 2020/21 the
NBV was TZS 242,773,241 after deducting accumulated amortization amounting to TZS
166,935,721

The value of intangibles was changed as shown above due to an increase in amortization as
compared to the last financial year. This is disclosed in note 15 in the financial statements.

2.41.16 Work in Progress

Work in progress represents costs incurred for the land use master plan project which is under
progress. During the financial year under review, work in progress was TZS 325,600,956
compared to TZS 271,539,331 for the previous financial year 2020/21. This is disclosed in note
16 in the financial statements.

2.41.17 Accounts Payables and Accruals

Payables during the financial year 2021/22 were TZS 6,099,530,569 compared to TZS
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6,438,617,576 for the previous financial year 2020/21. The mentioned payables for year
under review are made up by Other Deductions TZS 17,531,074, Miscellaneous Accounts
Payable TZS 2,330,113,820. Creditors for Supplies TZS 404,314,139 VAT payable
9,890,172.00 Other payables TZS 23,231,315, Miscellaneous Deposits TZS 373,672,566,
Deferred Income TZS 916,446,501, Deposit Payable TZS 1,010,974,630, Retention Money
Payable TZS 316,218,489, Caution Money Payable TZS 159,655,350, Deposit Payable-HESLB
TZS 7,885,748, Other Employees' Benefits TZS 422,126,200, TCU Deposit Payable TZS
13,300,000, Deposit Payable Muso TZS 2,090,200, Withholding Tax 21,080,365.00 and
deferred Income Grant TZS 71,000,000. Therefore, the payables amounted to TZS
5,432,390,983.00 generated from the year under review, and the remaining TZS 667,139,586
of staff claim originates from the financial year 2020/21. This is disclosed in note 17 in the
financial statements.

2.41.18 Current Portion of Long-Term Borrowing

The current portion of long-term borrowing during the financial year 2021/22 was TZS
224,000,000 comparedigo TZS 236,000,000 for the previous financial year 2020/21. The
mentioned current portion of long-term borrowing is for loan repayment in favour of TEA.
This is disclosed in note 18 in the financial statements.

2.41.19 Short Term Provisions

Short term-provisions includes audit fee, audit expenses and Directors fee. During the
financial year 2021/22 the short-term provisions were TZS 248,700,000 compared to TZS
348,100,000 for the last financial 2020/21. The decreased balance of short-term provisions
was because at 30 June 2022 there was no obligation to pay for directors’ fees. This is
disclosed in note 19 in the financial statements.

2.41.20 Long Term Borrowings

This loan from Tanzania Education Authority (TEA) was received for the construction of the
administration cum-academic building at Mbeya Campus Collage. The loan carries an interest
rate of 0.06% per annum and is repayable in 6 equal annual instalments of TZS 200,000,000
which started in December 2018. This is disclosed in note 20 in the financial statements.

2.41.21 Commitments

Commitments include operating and capital commitments arising from Contractual obligations
and fund received and kept in the deposit account to meet specified obligations. As at 30
June 2022, the balance funds in the BOT collection account amounted to TZS 5,785,088,855.
This is disclosed in note 44 in the financial statements.

1.37 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The report has been prepared in compliance with the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard
No.1 on The Report by Those Charged with Governance and in accordance with the provisions
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of the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418 [R.E 2020], Public Finance Act, Cap. 348 [R.E 2020]. The
Universities (General) Regulaticns, 2013, and Rule 64 of the Mzumbe University Charter, 2007.

1.38 STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Controller and Auditor General is the statutory auditor of Mzumbe University by virtue of
Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania of 1977 (as amended from
time to time) and as amplified under the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418 [R.E 2020].

The report was approved and signed on behalf of the University Council by:

Chairperson: Prof. Saida Yahya-Othman Signature: .\, Date: 'L:Tj&( WK
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3. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

The University is required by Rule 64 of the Mzumbe University Charter, 2007, to
keep proper accounts and prepare financial statements for each financial year that
give a true and fair view of the University at the end of the financial year. In
complying with this requirement, MU Council members wish to state that these
financial statements comply with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) and statutory requirements, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and informed judgment of the MU Council members with an appropriate
consideration to materiality. The financial statements, in this regard, are presented
in a manner consistent with International Public Sector Accounting Standards {IPSAS)
and statutory requirements.

The University Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of
effective internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions
recorded in the accounts are within the statutory authority and that they contain the
receipt and use of all public financial resources by the University. Although there are
inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of accounting controls, MU
Council members believe that the University’s system provides reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition
and that the accounting and the underlying records are sufficiently reliable to permit
the preparation of the financial statements that conform in all material respect with
IPSAS and statutory requirements.

To the best of the Council members’ knowledge, the system of internal controt has
operated adequately throughout the reporting period. Thus, Mzumbe University
members accept the responsibility for the integrity of the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2022, the information they contain, and their compliance
with the required reporting framework.

Nothing has come to the attention of the University Council that the Government of
the United Republic of Tanzania being the owner of the University shall wind up the
operations of the University, thus, not to remain a going concern for at least twelve
months from the date of this statement.

This report was approved and signed on behalf of the University Council by:

Chairperson: Prof. Saida Yahya-Othman, Signature: \\/\K

----------------------
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4.0  DECLARATION OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2022

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power
conferred under the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act, 1972 as amended by
Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial statements to be accompanied with a declaration
issued by the Head of Finance/Accounting responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the entity concerned. It is the duty of a Professional
Accountant to assist the Board of Directors / Governing Body to discharge the
responsibitity of preparing financial statements of an entity showing a true and fair
view of the entity’s position and performance in accordance with applicable
International Accounting Standards and statutory financial reporting requirements.
Full legal responsibility for the preparation of the financial statement rests with the
Council as under the Councillors’ responsibility statement on an earlier page.

I, Teophily A. Mdee, being the Director of Finance of Mzumbe University, hereby
acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June, 2022 have been prepared in compliance with the International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) Accrual basis.

I, thus, confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position of
Mzumbe University as of that date and that they have been prepared based on
properly maintained financial records.

Signed by: S

CPA CPA Teophily A. Mdee Date
Ag. Director of Finance ACPA 2005
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5.0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

2021/22 2020/21
ASSETS NOTE TZS TZS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 8,428,879,758 6,187,991,623
Receivables 11 2,759,435,489 1,934,190,760
Inventories 12 907,589,726 591,122,176
Prepayments 13 383,940,755 23,011,313
Total Current Assets 12,479,845,728 8,736,315,872
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 14 76,267,329,845 76,941,524,308
Intangible assets 15 215,270,442 242,773,241
Capital Work in Progress 16 325,600,955 271,539,331
Total Non-Current Assets 76,808,201,242 77,455,836,880
Total Assets 89,288,046,970 86,192,152,752
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 17 6,099,530,569 6,438,617,576
Currenif Portion of long-term 18 224,000,000 236,000,000
borrowings
Short-term Provisions 19 243,700,000 348,100,000
Total Current Liabilities 6,572,230,569 7,022,717,576
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term borrowings 20 200,000,000 400,000,000
Total Non-Current Liabilities 200,000,000 400,000,000
Total liabilities 6,772,230,569 7,422,717,576
Net assets 82,515,816,401 78,769,435,176
NET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital Fund 21 247,813,352 247,813,352

Fixed Asset Revaluation Reserve
Accumulated Surplus
Total net assets/equity

82,268,003,049
82,515,816,401

78,521.621.824
78,769,435.176

The Notes 1 to 57 forms part of the financial statements. These Financial
statements were signed by the University Council on its behalf by:
Chairperson: Prof. Saida Yahya-Othman, Signature:

Member: Prof. William John Mwegoha, Signature: [\

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/MU/2021/22



MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

The Notes 1 to 57 forms part of the financial statements.
These financial statements were signed by the University Council on its behalf

by:

Revenue

Revenue from non-exchange transaction

Revenue from exchange transaction

Foreign Exchange Gain

Total Revenue

Expenses

Wages, Salaries and Employees Benefits

Supplies and Consumables Used

Routine Repair and Maintenance
Expenses

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible asset
Interest expenses

Audit fee

Directors Fee

Other Expense

Total Expenses
Surplus for the peried

Accumulated Surplus B/F

Chairperson: Prof. Saida Yahya-Othman,

Member: Prof. William John Mwegoha,

NOTE

22

23

34

24

25

26

14

15

20

19

38

29

2021722

TZS

29,721,368,109

23,788,292,626
(43,098,276)
53,466,562,459

29,357,008,352
14,547,573,020
951,324,431
3,306,912,234
39,217,358
24,000,000

150,000,000

2020/21

TZS

25,115,115,075

20,881,546,104
77,193,766

46,073,854,945

27,892,415,083
10,111,178,111
1,777,229,630
3,173,799,293
51,335,307
48,000,000

158,714,000

100,000,000 114,000,000
650,056,132 551,201,620
49.126,091,527 43,877,873,044

4,340,470,932

78,521,621,824

2,195,981,901

75,504,770,870
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts:

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Transfer from/{to) Other Government Entities
Grants, Subsidies and Other Transfer Payments
Other Revenue

Total Receipts

Payments:

Supplies and Consumables Used

Wages, Salaries and Employees Benefits
Students Loans Payments (Meals,
accommodation, Books & Stationery)
Interest on Tanzania Education Authority (TEA)
Loan

Routine Repair and Maintenance Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Payments

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of PPE

Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment
(PPE)

Purchase of intangible Assets

Increase in Capital Work in Progress

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Borrowings (Tanzania Education
Authority Loan)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of
the Period

Effects on Foreign Currency Translation

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the
Period

NOTE

46
49

31

52
53

54

20

55
36

2021/22
TZ5

23,467,407,984
3,638,661,544
7,177,352,217

2020/21
TZS

21,679,328,930
8,524,935,460
9,467,103,905
700,863,162

34,283,421,745

40,372,231,457

14,174,324,917
9,225,322,498

3,630,975,795

36,000,000

920,713,650
969,042,175

13,493,519,331
12,292,668,730

9,501,729,835

48,000,000

1,007,782,373

28,956,379,035

5,327,042,710

(2,788,994,675)

(54,061,624)

(2,843,056,299)

(200,000,000)
(200,000,000)

2,283,986,411

6,187,991,623
(43,098,276)
8,428,879,758

36,343,700,269

4,028,531,188

93,468,500
(1,471,697,760)

{50,638,480)
(2,389,863,745)
(3,818,731,485)

(200,000,00(_)2
pli
(200,000,000)

9,799,702

6,100,998,155
77,193,766
6,187,991,623

The Notes 1 to 57 forms part of the financial statements. These financial

statements were signed by the University Council on its behalf by:

Chairperson: Prof. Saida Yahya-Othman,

Member: Prof.William John Mwegoha,

Date: ...~ =L 1 3 [ 2077

e Date: &}L’}hﬁ?
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
UNIVERSITY INFORMATION
Establishment

Mzumbe University, a Government-owned Institution, was established at Mvomero
District in Morogoro, in place of the Institute of Development Management- Mzumbe
(hereinafter referred to as the former Institute) by the Mzumbe University Act, 2001.
The former Institute which was established by the Institute of Development
Management Act, 1972 ceased to exist on 1 January 2002 when the University legally
came into existence. The establishing Act was repealed by Act No.7 of 2005 (The
Universities Act) and the University was re-established by Article 4 of the Mzumbe
University Charter and Rules of 2007 made under Section 25 of the Universities Act,
2005

The University is located 22 kilometers southwest of Morogoro Municipality about
four kilometers off the Tanzania-Zambia highway at the foothills of the Uluguru
mountain ranges.

The physical address of the Head Office of the University is: Mzumbe University

P. 0. Box 1,
Mzumbe,
Morogoro.
Tanzania.

Principal Activities

The University provides opportunities for and conducts training, research,
consultancy and outreach services. The principal activities of the University are
disclosed in the report by those charged with governance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Basis of Preparation

The University's financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis
except for financial assets and liabilities that have been stated at fair value. The
cash flow statement is prepared using the direct method. Financial statements
cover the year ended 30 June 2022.

The Financial Statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS), which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University and all values are presented in
full figures.

No adjustments have been made for other inflationary factors affecting the
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Financial Statements.

The annual budget is prepared on the Cash Basis IPSAS while Financial Reporting
Framework is under the Accrual Basis of Accounting as issued by the International
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) and as stipulated by the Public
Finance Act, Cap 348.

The budget is approved on a cash basis by function classification. The approved
budget covered the fiscal period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and includes all
activities within the University.

Statement of Compliance

The Mzumbe University’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) under an accrual
basis issued by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB)
and the requirements of the:-

i The provision of section 30(2) of the Public Finance Act. Cap. 348 (R.E2020)
ii. Public Procurement Act 2011;

jii. Treasury circulars and Guidelines issued from time to time; and

iv. Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard 1.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted by the University were consistent with those of the
previous financial year.

New and Changes to Standards and Interpretation that are Effective

There were no new/amended standards and interpretations which affected the
University during the year. Amendments resulting from IPSAS improvements for the
following standard did not have any impact on the accounting policies, financial
positions, or performance.

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED AND NOT YET
EFFECTIVE AND NOT EARLY ADOPTED

The new and amended standards issued but not effective up to the date of issuance
of the University’s financial statements are not expected to have an impact on the
financial statements of the University and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the University are set out
below. The University does not plan to adopt these standards early. These will be
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adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless otherwise indicated
below;

Standard Impact Effective date

IPSAS 43: | In January 2022, IPSASB released IPSAS 43. This| 1 January 2025
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
Leases measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
The objective of this standard is to ensure that
lesses and lessors provide relevant information in a
manner that faithfully represents those transactions.

The information in this Standard provides a basis for
users of financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity. This

INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IPSAS) NOT USED BY
THE UNIVERSITY.

The following standards have not been used by the University as they are not
applicable due to the nature of the activities the University is carrying out and
none of these are expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements
of the University.

IPSAS 10: Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary

Economies IPSAS 11: Construction Contracts

IPSAS 18: Segment

Reporting IPSAS 27:

Agriculture

[PSAS 32: Service Concession Agreements

IPSAS 34: Separate Financial Statements

IPSAS 35: Consolidated Financial

Statements

IPSAS 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Entities

IPSAS 37: Joint Arrangements

IPSAS 38: Disclosure of Interest in Other

Entities IPSAS 40: Public Sector Combination.

IPSAS 42: Social Benefits

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial
Statements are set out below. These policies have consistently been applied for all
the years presented, except if mentioned otherwise. Key accounting policies are
included in the specific notes to which they relate. However, significant accounting
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policies that do not relate to a specific note are outlined below:
(i) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements items of the University are measured and presented using
the currency of the primary economic environment which is Tanzanian Shillings
(TZS). This is the University’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated to Tanzanian
Shilling at rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
are translated into Tanzanian Shillings using the ruling rate at the Statement of
Financial Position date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denomination in a foreign currency are translated at the date of initial recognition.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Performance.,

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face
value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand and bank
balances. Cash Equivalents are short term deposits with original maturities of three
months or less. At the end of reporting period, there were no any amount of cash
and cash equivalents held by the University that are not available for use by the
University.

(iii) Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value/current replacement cost
whichever is lower. Cost is comprised of the purchase price of the inventories. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price less costs to make the sale. However, where the inventories
are specific to the University’s use and cannot be disposed to have a net realizable
value, the replacement cost of the inventories is used as the best available
measure of the net realizable value.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for consumption in the
ordinary course of the University’s operations. The University’s inventories at the
Statement of Financial Position date are comprised of stocks of stationery and other
consumables that will be expensed in the subsequent year.
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(iv) Prepayments

Prepayments are recognized as assets when payment for goods or services has been
made in advance of obtaining a right to access those goods or services.

(v) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the University expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The University’s provisions at the Statement of

Financial Position date comprise of staff allowances and claims from suppliers of
goods and services that were due during the financial year. The expense relating to
these provisions are presented in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Provision for legal liabilities

Professional expert advice is taken on establishing litigation provisions. Provisions
for legal proceedings and regulatory matters typically require a higher degree of
judgement than other types of provisions. When cases are at an early stage,
accounting judgments can be difficult because of the high degree of uncertainty
associated with determining whether a present obligation exists as a result of a past
event, estimating the probability of outflows and making estimates of the amount of
any outflows that may arise. As matters progress through various stages of the
cases, Management together with legal advisers evaluate on an ongoing basis
whether provisions should be recognized, and the estimated amounts of any such
provisions, revising previous judgments and estimates as appropriate.

(vi) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the University and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts,
rebates, or duty. The University assesses its revenue arrangements against specific
criteria in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or agent. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(a) Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential
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received and receivable by the University on its own account. Exchange
transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in
the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in the
exchange.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Revenue from Exchange Transactions for Mzumbe University includes Students’
Tuition Fees, Consultancy, Interest and Rent Revenue. Revenue from exchange
transactions is recognized as follows:-

Students’ Fees

Students’ fees are recognized in the accounting period in which the related
academic year falls on Accrual Basis IPSAS.

Consultancy Revenue and Short Course Income

Consultancy Revenue and short course income are recognised on Accrual Basis IPSAS
and are extended over the period covered to complete the consultancy assignment.

Rental Revenue

Rental Revenue is mainly from rented properties to third parties such as office
accommodation and residential properties. [t is recognized on a time proportional
basis when earned and accounted for in the respective accounting period in which
it falls.

Delivery of Health Services

Health services delivery is recognized in the accounting period in which the related
services are rendered on Accrual Basis IPSAS.

Application fees

Revenue from application fees is recognized to the extent that the application has
been processed by the University at the balance date.

Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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(b) Revenue from Non -Exchange Transactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a
non-exchange transaction, the University either receives value from another entity
{government or donor) without directly giving approximately equal value in
exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately
equal value in exchange. Transfers (whether cash or non-cash) include grants, debt
forgiveness, fines, bequests, gifts, donations, goods and services in-kind, and the
off-market portion of concessionary loans received.

Grant with No Conditions

Revenue from a nonh-exchange transaction is measured by the amount of the increase
in net assets recognized by the University.

Other Government Grants

Other government grants are recognized as revenue over the periods necessary to
match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the University with no future related costs are recognized in the
statement of financial performance in the period in which they become receivable.

Concessionary Loan

For concessionary loans, the difference between loan proceeds and the fair value of
the loan on initial recognition is recognized as revenue. However, if a present
obligation exists, a liability is recognized and as the present obligation is satisfied,
the liability is reduced and an equal amount of revenue recognized.

(vii) Grants

Grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.
Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as an asset and income when
University complies with conditions attached to them, if any. However, when there
is no condition attached or performance obligation the grant is recognised as an
asset and revenue of the reporting period.
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(viii) Financial Assets
Classification

Financial assets are classified at fair value through surplus or deficit, receivables,
held to maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
The University determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

All financial assets of the University are in the category of receivables based on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Receivables are non-derivate financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in the current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The University’s miscellaneous loan
advance and other receivables comprise ‘receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Recognition and Measurement

Miscellaneous loan advances and receivables are initially recognized at fair value
and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of services and in the event of default, insolvency,
or bankruptcy of the University or the counterparty.

De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from such
assets have expired or have been transferred and the University has subsequently
transferred all risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The University assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
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A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial re-organization, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

(ix) Financial Liabilities
Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are derecognized when extinguished.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
respective carrying amount is recognized in surplus or deficit.

(x) Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and Subsequent Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment

The University’s Property, Plant and Equipment are non-cash generating assets and
initially recorded at cost. Cost is the amount of cash paid or the fair value of the
other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or
construction. Where assets are acquired in non-exchange transactions, the cost is
their fair value at the date of the exchange. Fair value is determined by valuations
of the Property, Plant and Equipment to obtain deemed cost. Subsequently,
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Property, Plant and Equipment are accounted using Cost Model. By using cost
model; the asset is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss if any.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the University recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
property plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of
financial performance.

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

In the financial year under review, the Management has adopted historical cost
model on valuation of its fixed assets against revaluation model that has been used
consistently over the years. The reason for adoption of historical model over
revaluation model was to comply with Government Circular No. 2 of 2018. Further,
the Management has reviewed the economic life of its motor vehicle to conform to
Government guidelines (The Public Assets Management Guideline 2019 issued by the
Ministry responsible for Finance and Planning aimed at addressing policy, legal,
regulatory, operational and technological challenges that arising in the course of
managing public assets).

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of financial
performance during the financial period in which they are incurred. Depreciation of
assets is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated economic
useful lives, as follows:-

Asset Category Rate %
Buildings 2.0
Machinery and Telephone System 6.7
Local Area Network System 14.3
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10.0
Computers (Hardware) 25.0
Computers (UPS) 14.3
Motor Vehicles (5 tons and above) 10.0
Motor Vehicles (below 5 tons) 20.0
Motorcycles 14.3
Sewage and Water Supply System 6.7
Asset Category Rate %
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Roads, Street Lights & Playgrounds 6.7
Library books 25.0

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life. The carrying values
of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and
equipment is determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of financial
performance.

Depreciation on additions and disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment is charged
on prorata basis depending on the period of use of such assets during the year.

(xi) Intangible Assets

As per IPSAS 31, acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Cost of
acquiring software that is regarded as an integral part of some identifiable hardware
is recognized as part of the cost of the hardware. Costs of acquiring other software
are recognized as intangible assets and are amortized over their estimated useful
lives.

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the University and will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets.
Direct costs include the costs of software development, employees and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs
are recognized as an expense as incurred. Computer software costs recognized as
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

A variety of amortization methods can be used to allocate the depreciable amount
of an asset on a systematic basis over its useful life. Amortization is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the economic useful life of the intangible assets. The annual
rates of amortization that have been consistently applied are:-

Item Rate %
Intangible Assets 12.5
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Likewise, intangible assets’ useful lives (amortization period) are reviewed only
when the conditions warrant the review at the date of the statement of financial
position.

(xii) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are accrued/expensed in the year they occur. Such borrowing costs
are expensed over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
constructed and borrowings have been incurred. During the year under review, the
University has charged to the statement of financial performance borrowing costs
as per Note 23 to the financial statements.

(xiii) Major Renovation

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset
or to the date of the next major renovation, whichever is sooner.

(xiv} Residual Value of Assets and Useful Life

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
when there is strong evidence that carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Likewise, the asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed only when the conditions warrant the review at the date of the statement
of financial position.

(xv) Inventories Valuation
Measurement and recognition

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and current replacement cost, except
where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, their cost shall
be measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Inventories shall be
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held
for:

= Distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

» Consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge
or for a nominal charge.

Cost is determined by using first-in-first-out method of valuation. This method of
valuation is consistent with that of previous years.

Impairment of Inventories

When there is objective evidence that the value of inventories is impaired either
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through damage and or obsolescence, provision is made to that effect through
Statement of Financial Performance. During the year under review, there was no
impairment of inventories.

(xvi) Deposits, Prepayments and Receivables
Recognition and Measurement

Deposits, prepayments and receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost net of provision for impairment.

Provision for Impairment of Receivables

Provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the University will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the specific receivables. The loss is recognized through
statement of Financial Performance as per Note 11 to the financial statements.

(xvii) Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The University assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a
non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the University estimates the asset’s
recoverable service amount. An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of
the non-cash generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable service amount.

(xviii) Contingent liabilities

The University does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

(xix) Contingent assets

The University does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a
possible asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the University
in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually
to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
or service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the
asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the
period in which the changeoccurs.
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(xx) Budget Information

(a) The budget is approved on a cash basis by functional classification. The
approved budget covers the fiscal period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and
includes all entities within the University. Differences between the original and
final budgets are attributed to recast of the budget.

(b) The University’s budget and the accounting bases differ. The financial
statements are prepared on an accrual basis using a classification based on the
nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the
budget is prepared on cash basis. A comparison of budget and actual amounts,
prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

(c) Timing differences occur when the budget period differs from the reporting
period reflected in the financial statements. As a result of the adoption of the
cash basis for budgeting purposes, there are no timing differences that would
require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts
presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts.

(d) Entity differences occur when the budget omits programmes/activities or an
entity that is part of the entity for which the financial statements are
prepared. There are no entity differences for Mzumbe University.

(e) The annual budget figures included in the financial statements are for the
whole University. These budget figures are those approved by the University
Council both at the beginning and during the year following a period of
recasting the original budget. The figures included in the financial
statements are not made publicly available.

(xxi) Development Partners’ Funded Activities

The University receives funds from various donors to support different University
activities. The funds are recognised as Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions in
the period in which they are received and are used in accordance with the approved
budget and are consolidated in the University’s accounts. This policy has been
applied consistently. Funds received from Development Partners are shown in Note
22 to the financial statements.

{xxii) Capital Fund

Capital Fund comprises contribution of capital expenditure funds from Government
of Tanzania to the University as per Note 21 to the financial statements.
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(xxiii) Payables and Accruals

Payables are recognized at fair value. Other payables are recognized when incurred
through either enjoyment of services on credit and/or receiving of goods supplied
on credit. Payables and Accrued Charges are shown in Note 17 to these financial
statements.

(xxiv) Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Initial Recognition

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional
currency; by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Reporting at Subsequent Reporting Dates
At each reporting dates: -
* Foreign currency monetary items shall be translated using the closingrate;

* Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and

» Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

Recognition of Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising from: -
= the settlement of monetary items, or

* translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were
translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial
statements, are recognized in surplus or deficit in the period in which they
arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in net
assets/equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized directly in
net assets/equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognized in surplus or deficit, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognized in surplus or deficit.
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Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the University are measured using
Tanzania Shilling (TZS), which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the University operates.

(xxv) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recorded at fair value net of directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, trade and other are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized
as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are integral
part of the EIR., The EIR amortization is included in the statement of financial
performance.

(xxvi} Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are initially recorded at fair value. After
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate method (EIR), less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as other
income in the Statement of Financial Performance. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the statement of Statement of Financial Performance.

(xxvii) Employees Benefits

The objective of IPSAS 39 (Employees Benefits) is to prescribe the accounting and
disclosure for both short-term and long-term employee’s benefits. These are all forms
of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Short Term Benefits

The cost of all short-term employee benefits such as salaries, empioyees’
entitlements to leave pay, medical aids, other contributions, etc. are recognized as
expense during the period in which the employees render the related services.

Short-term employee benefits include the following: -

» Wages, salaries, and social security contributions;
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= Short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick
leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related employee service; and

= Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, vehicles/cycles, and free
or subsidized goods or services) for current employees.

Accounting for short-term employee benefits is generally straightforward, because
no actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation or the cost, and
there is no possibility of any actuarial gain or loss. Mcreover, short-term employee
benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis. University staff are
covered under defined contribution plans according to which every staff
contributes a percentage as prescribed by the Fund of which they are members.
The employees’ contributions are remitted on monthly basis to each respective
Pension Fund by the University.

Long Term Benefits

Mzumbe University contributes to pension schemes in favour of all employees who
fall under permanent and pensionable terms. Contributions to pension funds are
recognized as an expense in the period the employees render the related services.
The contributions are made to a defined contribution pension fund and are
recognized as liability when employee has provided service in exchange for
employees benefit to be paid in future.

Effective from July 2011, employers’ contributions have been remitted to the
Pension Funds by the Treasury in accordance with Circular letter No.
C/BA54/328/01/15. All short-term employees are members of the National Social
Security Fund and their contributions (employer and employees) are remitted by
the University on monthly basis. The University accrues the gratuity for Contract
Employees at 25% of their basic pay on monthly basis. However, from 2011/12 the
gratuity is retained by the Treasury which is supposed to pay the contract
employees upon completion of their contract. Employees’ Social Security Costs for
the Year 2021/22 are shown in Note 33 of these financial statements.

Post-Employment Benefits - Defined Contribution Plan for Key Management
Personnel

All the University employees including Senior Management Team are members of
the Public Service Social Security Fund (PSSSF). This Fund is Government owned and
is responsible for all staff pension benefits on retirement. The employees
contribute 5% of their basic salaries on a monthly basis while the University
contributes 15% of the employees’ basic salaries to the Fund. The University’s
contributions are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense.
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(xxviii) Related Party Disclosures

Related party means parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, or if the related party entity and another
entity are subject to common control. For the University, related parties include:
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology (MoEST), key management
personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel and
members of the Senior Management Team. The Council consists of members
appointed by Government of Tanzania. Deputy Vice Chancellors are not members of
the Council but does attend meetings of the Council,

(xxix) Comparative Figures

Figures for the previous Financial Statements have been regrouped whenever
necessary in order to make them comparable with current year’s figures. Certain
comparative amount in the statement of financial performance have been restated,
reclassified or re-presented, as a result of a change in accounting policy, a
correction of prior period error, a change in classification of certain expenses
during the currentyear.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the University’s Financial Statements requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets
and contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in
future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies Management has made the
various judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts disclosed in the financial statements.

Determination of the useful lives of PPE

The estimated useful lives and residual values of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed annually and are in line with the rates at which they are depreciated,
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IPSAS 3 requires the use
of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates. The areas involving more judgment or
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, aredisclosed.

The University makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
year are disclosed.

The useful lives of assets are estimated having regard to such factors as asset
maintenance, rate of technical and commercial obsolescence, and asset usage. The
useful lives of key assets are reviewed annually.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to
the current period financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have no
effect on the previously reported amounts for the year.

Expenses
fn general, expenditure are recognized when they are incurred.
RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Mzumbe University operations are exposed to certain financial risks. Financial risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on University’s financial performance. The
main risks arising from the University’s operations are credit risk, liquidity risk
and currency risk. Mzumbe University reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks as summarized below:

(a) Liquidity Risk
The University uses a prudent liquidity risk management through maintaining
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sufficient cash to cover committed credit facilities and working capital
requirements as budgeted in each financial year based on the approved funds
disbursed to the University from the Government and other donors as well as own
generated funds.

(b) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a transaction will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The University is
subject to an element of credit risk principally within receivables, cash and cash
equivalents. To mitigate risk, the University's risk management framework is
adhered to. Cash and cash equivalents are diversified through holding bank
balances with well-recognized banking institutions and recovering staff debts in
terms of the applicable regulations directly from the employee’s salary and/or
other benefits. Credit exposure is further reduced by monitoring individual
weightings.

Due to the large number of individual trade debtors, the concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade receivables is greatly reduced. The University exposure to

credit risk is reflected by the carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position
for cash and cash equivalents and receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk

at the reporting date is as shown below:

Financial Assets

30.06.2022

30.06.2021

TZ5

TZS

Receivables

2,759,435,489

1,934,190,760

Cash and Cash equivalent

8,428,879,758

6,187,991,623

Financial Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals

6,099,530,569

6,438,617,576

Current  Portion of Long-Term 224,000,000 236,000,000
Borrowings

Short-term Provisions 248,700,000 348,100,000
Long-Term Borrowings 200,000,000 400,000,000

(c) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is managed at an operational level and it is monitored by
the Directorate of Finance. Losses that arise from foreign liabilities are managed
through timely payment of outstanding liabilities.

(d) Legal and Regulatory Risk

The University ensures that it does not breach its constitutional and statutory
powers and regulatory requirements. It will ensure that there is evidence of
counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions
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they may enter into with the University. In so far as it is reasonably able to do so,
the University will seek to minimise the risk of future legislative or regulatory
changes impacting adversely on the organisation

(e) Human Resources Risk

Risks that relate to human resources of the University, these risks can have an
effect on the University’s human capital with regard to: integrity and honesty;
employee Wellbeing, employee relations and retention. The University can
mitigate this risk through proper awareness trainings conducted on regular basis.

(f) Political Environment Risk

Risks arising from political factors and decisions that have an impact on the
University’s mandate and operations. The University can mitigate this risk by
following the Government rules and procedures.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of
the University’s assets and liabilities that are carried in the financial statements.

30 June 2022
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Property, Plant and Equipment
Financial Liabilities

Accounts Payable and other Payables

30 June 2021

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables
Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable and other Payables

Carrying Value Fair Value
Level |

TZS TZS TZS
3,428,879,758 - 8,428,879,758
2,759,435,489 - 2,759,435,489
76,195,658,315 76,195,658,315
6,099,530,569 6,099,530,569
Carrying Value Fair Value
TZS Level | TZS TZS
6,187,991,623 - 6,187,991,623
1,934,190,760 - 1,934,190,760
76,941,524,308 76,941,524,308
6,438,617,576 6,438,617,576

Fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction by
market participants at measurement date. The following methods and
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assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

« Cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable and other
payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The University uses the following hierarchy
for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by

valuation technique:

» Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

« Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect
on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly orindirectly

« Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

9.1

Categories of Financial Instruments

The categorization of financial instruments as per IPSAS 29, Financial Instruments is

as shown below:
Financial Assets

Carrying Value Held to Maturity Receivables
30 June 2022 TZS TZS TZS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,428,879,758 8,428,879,758
Receivables 2,759,435,489 - 2,759,435,489
11,188,315,247 8,428,879,758 2,759,435,489
Carrying Value Held to Maturity Receivables
30 June 2021 TZS TZS TZS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,187,991,623 6,187,991,623
Receivables 1,934,190,760 1,934,190,760
8,122,182,383 6,187,991,623 1,934,190,760
Financial Liabilities
Carrying Value Other Financial
Liabilities
30 June 2022 TZS TZS
Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable and other Payables 6,099,530,569 6,099,530,569
6,099,530,569 6,099,530,569
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Carrying Value Other Financial

Liabilities
30 June 2021 TZS TZ5
Financial Liabilities
Accounts Payable and other Payables 6,438,617,576 6,438,617,576

6,438,617,576 6,438,617,576
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9.2  Prior period error

During the current period it was noted by the Management that there is a need to
review the useful life of items of PPE that had been used consistently over the
years. These lead to reduction of accumulated depreciation amounted to TZS

191,791,596.
PPE Cost PPE/INTANGIBLE Accumulated
Accumulated Siirlis
Depreciation/Amort P
TZS TZS TZS
Balance as at 30 June 2021 94,766,499,027 17,553,435,390 78,769,435,176
Effect of errors in application of PPE i
estimate (191,791,596) (594,089,707))
Balance as at 1 July 2021 (Restated) 94,494,959,696 17,361,643,793 78,175,345,469

Additions 2,440,926,176
Transfers

Disposal

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 96,935,885,872

3,306,912,234

20,668,556,027

4,340,470,932
82,515,816,401

10.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

TZS TZS

Mzumbe University Proper 6,694,544,416 4,783,146,425
DSBD/DELCE 37,104,362 184,410,799
Research Information & Publication 18,053,491 38,817,427
DCC 506,126,096 280,549,147
MCC 39,420,638 12,377,175
Bookshop 10,834,575 10,324,004
Health Centre 9,023,998 5,043,048
UCSF-MU-MOHSW 475,128,107 33,467,938
VLIR-QUS 10,663,443 9,445,217
POLICOFA 3,544,996 36,843,127
VICT 11,816,843 46,470,510
Lumumba 31,249,342 44,927,980
TESCEA 17,246,571 25,883,900
ACTEA 47,811,104 19,108,206
CRC 12,160,263 2,123,740
CAYET 431,440,949 343,672,206
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30.06.2022 30.06.2021

TZS TLS

CEHME 72,710,564 311,380,775

TOTAL 8,428,879,758 6,187,991,623
RECEIVABLES

The amount represents Staff Salary Advances, Loan and Staff house rent, Staff
Imprest for the purpose of conducting research, Tuition Fee from HESLB and
Students’ Tuition Fee Receivable (uncollected tuition fee) that accumulated to TZS
2,759,435,489 due to financial difficulties experienced during the year under

review.
30.06.2022  RESTATED 2021
TZS TZS
SUNDRY DEBTORS 2,511,461,520 1,508,640,334
PROVISION FOR DOBTFUL DEBTS - -178,348,115
STAFF IMPREST AND SALARY ADVANCES 199,208,172 166,763,489
RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 26,988,900 156,054,050
LOAN RECEIVABLE 2,140,600 2,140,600
Other receivables 19,636,297 138,740,963
PERSONAL EMOLUMENT RECEIVABLE 140,199,439
TOTAL 2,759,435,489 1,934,190,760
There have been no changes during the reporting period in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions used in measuring the receivables’
impairment provision.
INVENTORIES
30.06.2022 RESTATED 2021
TZS TZS
Medical supplies 22,809,702 12,528,175
Office consumables Stationaries 230,675,799 137,877,730
Building materials and equipment 244,207,530 152,525,569
Spare Parts 236,656,805 104,236,196
Supplies General 26,702,830 12,554,630

Research, Information and Publication (RIP)

Book Stock
TOTAL

146,537,060
907,589,726

171,399,876
591,122,176

Inventories disclosure pursuant to {PSAS 12 Para 47
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value {NRV);
The TZS 907,589,726 of inventories were carried at fairvalue;

The TZS 316,467,551 of inventories recognized as assets during the year ended
30 June 2022;

No any amount was write-down of inventories recognized as an expenses in the

iv.
financial year ended 30 June 2022 as per requirements of IPSAS 12 Para 42;
V. No any number of inventories pledged as security for liabilities
vi. No any amount of any reversal of any write-down that is recognized in the

Statement of Financial performance for the year ended 30 June2022.

13.  PREPAYMENTS
This represents amount paid in advance in respect of supply of Motor Vehicles, Solar
Light, supply of medicines and drugs for the University Health Centre, supply of
Supply of Generator Equipment’s, Supply of other Consumable, and payment for

14.

attending Sabasaba trade Exhibitions.

30.06.2022 30.06.2021
TZS TZS
Supply of Fuel and Motor Vehicle 277,040,739 1,878,817
SUPPLY Solar Light 44,978,934 -
Supply of Medicines and Drugs 1,652,256 1,652,256
Other Supplies 20,241,044
Supply of Generator Equipment 21,017,542 -
Dar es Salaam International Trade Fair 19,010,240 19,480,240
Total 383,940,755 23,011,313
Comprises of:
Financial year ended 30 Remarks
Period June 2022
Amount (TZS) %
100 | This balance entails amount paid
Within 12 Months 383,940,755 in advance for purchasing of goods
by the University or services
randarad ta tha llnivarcity
Total 383,940,755 100

Property, Plant and Equipment

The category Property, Plant and Equipment consists of Land, Buildings, Plant
and Machinery, Motor Vehicles, Office Equipment as well as Furniture and
Fittings. Net acquisitions (after disposals, depreciation and amortization) for the
year ended 30 June 2022 was TZS 76,195,658,315 (2021: TZS 77,256,141,640).
Additions or reductions in fixed assets are reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, while the depreciation expenses for the period are reported
in the Statement of Financial Performance. Plant and Machinery, Motor Vehicles,
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Office Equipment, and Furniture and Fittings are capitalized if their cost is greater
than or equal to the threshold limit set. They are depreciated over the asset’s
estimated useful life using the straight-line method.

Assets are reviewed annually to determine whether there is any impairment in
their value, Pursuant to [PSAS 17.67;

All Property, Plant and Equipment have been reported at cost;

No item of Property, Plant and Equipment was temporarily idle or not in use as
at 30 June 2022 except that held for condemnation;

At the date of acquisition, the fair values of assets were considered to be equal
to their carrying amount;

There is no existence of the number of contractual commitments for the
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment of the University;

No University’s assets were put under collateral security;

The University procured the assets amounting to TZS 2,440,926,176 as shown in
PPE movement schedule; However, TZS 1,991,398,816 were Acquired on
monetary terms and TZS 449,527,360 acquisition on non-monetary term. Assets
acquired through Non-Monetary are measured at fair value on date of
acquisition. Assets Acquired through exchange transactions are measured a cost.
The University did not dispose its assets in the financial year2021/22;

In the financial year 2021/22, the University received Motor Vehicles from
different Development Partners. The assets received were recorded in the
University register for assets. The University valuation of assets was done in
financial year 2021/22 to establish their deemed cost/fair value;

No University asset was acquired through Public Sector combinations in the year
under review;

Nor impairment losses recognized in surplus or deficit pursuant to IPSAS 21 or
IPSAS 26 and neither impairment losses reversed in surplus or deficit in
accordance with IPSAS 21 or IPSAS 26 in the year under review;

The depreciation of the University assets was recognized in surplus or deficit or
as part of the cost of other assets during the year under review;

The University has some building S as Lumumba complex and CRDB Bank Building
the Management formed a team to come with suggestions on the utilization of
those Buildings. It is expected that through this team a proper and clear way
forward on Lumumba Complex Property would be borne. The appointed team
expects to give the results of the findings in this financial year (2022/23), it is
when the management will decide whether the building will be an investment or
not, and the required treatment will be done.

The University Property, Plant and Equipment was notimpaired
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 JUNE 2022

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

15.1 Composition of University Intangible Assets and Measurement Criteria

The intangible assets contain software for the year under review. Detailed information
regarding measurement criteria is provided in Note 6(xi). At the closure of the period, the
University had a number of software that are used in its operations. The software includes
MU Academic Records Management System {MU-ARMS); Sage 300 (ACCPAC); Turnitin and
WINSVRSTD 2012 SINGL OLP BSoftware.

Intangible assets disclosure requirements:

i.
ii.

iii,

iv,

vi.
vii.

viii.

ix.

xi.

xii.

All intangible assets have been reported at cost;

Intangible assets with indefinite live are not amortized pursuant to IPSAS 31 Para
106;

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on straight-line basis over their
economic useful lives;

The useful life of intangible assets with indefinite life are reviewed annually
pursuant to IPSAS 31 Para 108;

The University did not acquire intangible assets in the financial year2021/22
The University did not dispose its intangible assets in the financial year2021/22,;
No impairment losses recognized in surplus or deficit pursuant to IPSAS 21 or
IPSAS 26 and neither impairment losses reversed in surplus or deficit in
accordance with IPSAS 21 or IPSAS 26 in the year under review;

The TZS 39,217,358 were recognized as amortization charges during the year
ended 30 June 2022;

The amortization of the University intangible assets was recognized in surplus or
deficit during the year under review;

At the date of acquisition, the fair values of intangible assets were considered
to be equal to their carrying amount;

There is no existence of the number of contractual commitments for the
acquisition of intangible assets of the University;

No University’s intangible assets were put under collateral security.
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

15.

17.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

The disclosed work in progress at the closure of the period represents costs

incurred for the land use master plan project which is under progress.

Description

MU Land Use
_Manasement (T7S)

TOTAL (TZS)

Opening Balance 1 July 2021

271,539,331

271,539,331

Adjustments -
Restated Opening Balance 1 271,539,331
July 2021 271,539,331
Additions during the year
(monetary) 54,061,624 54,061,624
Capitalization during the year - -
Closing Balance 30 June
2022 325,600,955 325,600,955
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
30.06.2022 RESTATED 30 JUNE 202
TZS TZ
OTHER DEDUCTIONS 17,531,074 75,484,91
Miscellaneous accounts payable 2,330,113,820 903,343,65
CREDITORS FOR SUPPLIES 404,314,139 397,884,08
VAT payable 9,890,172
Other Payables 23,231,315 64,600,17
Miscellaneous deposits 373,672,566
Deferred Income 916,446,501 935,108,85
Deposit payable 1,010,974,630
RETENTION MONEY PAYABLE 316,218,489 2,854,367,29
CAUTION MONEY PAYABLE 159,655,350 626,123,99
Deposit Payable-HESLB 7,885,748
Other employees' benefits 422,126,200 409,318,85
Withholding Tax 21,080,365.00
TCU DEPOSIT PAYABLE 13,300,000
Deposit payable MUSO 2,090,200 71,000,00
PSSSF DEDUCTION PAYABLE - 84,000,00
Deferred Income Grant 71,000,000 7,357,00
Provision for Furniture Allowance - 10,028,75
TOTAL 6,099,530,569 6,438,617,57

Note: The institution has long-term unpaid staff arrears of TZS 201,643,289, but
they are not probable because the university still has reconciliation with the
Ministry of Finance and Planning regarding the accuracy of the staff outstanding

balance.
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

18.  CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

TZS TZS

Tanzania Education Authority (TEA) Loan 224,000,000 236,000,000
TOTAL 224,000,000 236,000,000

19.  SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
These provisions are recognized when the University has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

30.06.2022 Restated
, TZS TZS
Provision for Audit Fees 150,000,000 135,400,000
Provision for Audit Expenses 98,700,000 98,700,000
Provision for Directors’ Fees - 114,000,000
TOTAL 248,700,000 348,100,000

During the year 2021/22 opening balance for Provision for audit fee was
135,400,000 additions for the same was 14,600,000.00 where the whole amount for
2020/21 was paid on 2021/22. The University recognize 150,000,000 as Audit fee for
financial year 2021/22 leading to 150,000,000 balance as at 30 June 2022,

During the year 2021/22 opening balance for Provision for audit expenses was
98,700,000.00 no additions for the same leading to 98,700,000 balance as at 30
June 2022

During the year 2021/22 opening balance for Provision for Directors Fee was
114,000,000.00 additions for the same was 100,000,000.00 while actual payment
was 214,000,000 leading no obligations for Directors fee.

20. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
The outstanding long-term loan of TZS 400,000,000 is in favour of Tanzania
Education Authority (TEA). The terms of the repayment of loan is in 6 equal
instalments payable over a period of 6 years up to 31 December 2023 at an
interest rate of 6% per annum which is below the market rate of 17%.

30.06.2022 30.06.2021
TZS TZS

BORROWING FROM GOVERNMENT ENTITIES (TEA LOAN)
At 01 July 636,000,000 836,000,000
Received during the year - -
Interest charges accrued 24,000,000 48,000,000
Repayment - Interest (36,000,000) (48,000,000)
Repayment - Principal (200,000,000) {200,000,000)
Other changes if any - -
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

At 30 June 424,000,000 636,000,000
Current Portion 224,000,000 236,000,000
Non-Current Portion 200,000,000 400,000,000
Total 424,000,000 636,000,000

21.  CAPITAL FUND

The capital fund figure of TZS 247,813,352 as at 30 June 2022 represents capital

expenditure funds received from the Government of Tanzania.

22.  REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2021/22 2020/21
TZS TZS
Revenue Grants from Donors 3,880,448,347
Government Subvention Development 978,000,000 -
Government Subvention - P.E. 22,153,753,18 21,234,666,728
Non-Monetary Revenue-Capital 2 .
TOTAL 29,721,368,109 25,115,115,075
The reported revenue from Non-Exchange transactions comprises of:
2021/22 2020/21
TZS TZS
External Assistance - Grants from Donors 6,140,087,567 3,880,448,347
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology 23,131,753,182 21,234,666,728
Non-Monetary Revenue-Capital 449,527,360 -
Total Amortized During the Year 29,721,368,109 25,115,115,075
23, REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2021/22 RESTATED
TZS TZS
Accommodation Fees 491,571,552 413,373,250
Application fee 331,467,000 333,173,000
BOOKSHOP GROSS PROFIT -7,861,758 -2,210,877
Bookshop Sales 63,324 -
CAUTION MONEY 180,620,000 150,660,000
Consultancy 408,848,262 259,573,699
Examination appeal and supplementary fee 50,882,500 30,820,000
Graduation Fees 89,450,000 -
Health services Income 120,103,974 98,811,714
House rent 235,217,130 265,656,254
Other miscellaneous income 587,130,785 705,893,162
Short Course 503,802,179 684,325,052
Student Fees 20,686,019,000 17,917,327,975
GAIN/LOSS FROM DISPOSAL OF PPM - 24,142,875
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ldentity Card 62,220,000 -
Quality assurance fees 23,018,000 -
Rental income from private entities 25,740,678 -
TOTAL 23,788,292,626 20,881,546,104
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MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

24,  WAGES, SALARIES AND EMPLOYEES BENEFITS

2021/22  RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
Casual Labourers 112,172,341 5,734,316
Local Staff Salaries 18,798,142,500 18,668,488,918
Leave Travel 79,900,194 75,955,224
Extra Duty 1,559,502,494 1,420,927,410
Responsibility Allowance 763,969,466 728,386,400
Outfit Allowance 4,220,000 -
Subsistence Allowance 316,188,507 322,523,472
Gratuities 2,148,000 1,650,000
Special Allowance 141,102,375 -
Field Practical Allowance 539,445,000 1,599,584,820
Professional Allowances 45,743,906 -
Councillors Allowance 51,000,000
Wages Salaries and Employee Benefits 949,832,992
Utilities 38,710,000
Transport Allowance 39,646,000 -
Facilitation Allowance 1,143,743,031 1,409,726,657
Honoraria 547,426,845 -
Electricity Allowance 68,329,000 48,960,000
Housing Allowance 426,600,000 219,000,000
Food and Refreshment 293,725,950 -
Telephone Allowance 47,287,300 96,331,890
Water and Waste Disposal 9,679,769 -
Furniture 21,610,000 84,000,000
Contributions to Public Service Social Security 2,794,983,585 2,675,230,205
Fund PSSSF
Contributions to National Health Insurance 561,899,097 535,915,771
Fund NHIF
TOTAL 29,357,008,352 27,892,415,083
25,  SUPPLIES AND CONSUMABLES USED
2021/22 RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
Office Consumables papers pencils pens 231,257,040 251,229,322
and stationaries
Computer Supplies and Accessories 76,733,864 -
Office and general supplies and services 66,599,617 62,515,925
Computer Software 4,554,060 -
Newspapers and Magazines 55,987,000 -
Printing and Photocopy 16,316,700 -
Software Licence Fees 98,447,191 -
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Outsourcing Costs includes cleaning

and security services
Budget and annual accounts prep. expenses

Electricity charges by TANESCO/other

PSEs eg. REA
Water expenses to Govt. entities

Diesel

Drugs and Medicines

Laundry and Cleaning

Rental office and housing expenses to

private entities
Uniforms

Meetings conferences and seminars to

PSEs e.g. AICC
Accommodation

Tuition fees

Tuition fees to private entities
Board remuneration

Training allowances

Training materials

Air Travel Tickets

Research and Dissertation
Research and consultancies
Conference and Seminars

Upkeep Allowances

Ground Travel Bus Railway Taxi etc.
Lodging/Accommodation

Per Diem Domestic

Per Diem Foreign

Visa Application Fees

Advertising and Publication
Communication expenses to TTCL & Other

PSEs
Publicity

Subscription to other private bodies
Subscription to government entities e.g.

NBAA CRB
Communication Network Services

Examination Expenses

Training expenses domestic to private entities
Sporting Supplies

Exhibition Festivals and Celebrations
Entertainment

Gift and Prizes

Maintenance of Grounds and Amenities

1,349,553,459

461,995,634

47,204,759
808,302,141
62,439,358
13,912,000
9,594,850

13,636,000
56,711,566

79,763,100
134,927,872
45,789,802

32,000,000
39,113,531
36,499,747
110,689,355
890,956,964
462,851,592

302,784,646
501,450,639
60,047,500
2,128,349,83
17,220,954
1,360,570
17,102,200
892,217

78,700,711
192,155
16,314,650

363,634,819
454,310,916
13,980,000
24,854,500
146,748,320
88,262,160
30,366,800

1,120,939,344

34,330,880
496,444,545

64,332,321
537,419,880

17,428,650

7,197,500

224,251,702

-

12,313,000

288,241,800
25,091,280
1,150,373,594

578,449,633

-

1,019,091,690

77,634,499
389,349,208

118,231,840

416,858,191
59,021,486

189,392,359

17,150,000
68,965,724
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Service and Repair Non ICT Equipment 52,726,578
Audit fees paid to CAG - 158,714,000
Legal and inspection fees to private entities 2,340,000 -
Legal fees 70,744,551 183,558,396
Education Supervision Expense 16,080,000 192,890,049
Loan management and servicing fees - 84,862,232
Environment impact assessment review and 8,695,000 -
monitoring expenses
Bank Charges and Commissions 91,583,945 -
Project Management 4,362,964,66 1,876,595,163
Recognition Registration Accreditation 4,377,530 65,180,000
Admission and Arti
Honorariums expert opinion 270,798,690 -
Regulatory costs 106,476,365 27,253,900
Insurance expenses to NIC 33,600,121 27,846,035
Burial expenses 115,335,000 54,728,520
Receivables Impairment Expenses - 160,568,865
Subscription to other International Institutions 12,164,355 -
TOTAL 14,547,573, 10,111,178,111
ROUTINE REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
2021/22 RESTATED
TZS 2020/21
Qutsource Maintenance Contract Services 558,096,820 -
Cement Bricks and Building Materials - 474,010,340
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials 19,783,349 -
Water Pumps - 24,463,350
Service and Repair Motor Vehicles and 245,527,204
Water Crafts 835,974,667
Tyres and Batteries 111,290,008 370,074,911
Office equipment and 10,336,820
appliances paid/incurred 72,706,362
Air Conditioner 6,290,230 -
TOTAL 951,324,431 1,777,229,630
DEPRECIATION
30.06.2022  RESTATED 2021
TZS TZS
Office buildings and structures 1,369,235,239 1,325,044,557
Roads 23,802,453 23,802,453
Sewer System 50,792,204 50,792,204
Motor Vehicles Administrative 649,909,379 657,524,607
Motorbikes Motor cycles and bicycles 713,762 917,741
Hardware servers and equipment 302,176,573 279,053,319
incl. desktops laptops UP
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Data communication centres networks 48,559,710 58,715,372
and facilities

Plant and Machinery 146,500,644 145,312,847
Office Furniture and Fittings 653,164,643 585,688,906
Library Books 62,057,627 46,947,287
TOTAL 3,306,912,234 3,173,799,293

28.  ARMOTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET

30.06.2022 RESTATED

TZS TZS
Computer Software 39,217,358 51,335,307
TOTAL 39,217,358 51,335,307

29.  OTHER EXPENSES
30.06.2022 RESTATE

2020/21

TZS TZS
Insurance of Vehicles 138,011,626 107,202,943
Self Help Scheme 3,700,000 18,294,840
SHIMIWI - 92,086,960
Property insurance 109,644,506 34,375,877
Audit expenses 97,700,000 -
Contribution to Consolidated Fund 15% 300,000,000 300,000,000
on Gross Revenue
TOTAL 650,056,132 551,960,620

30. SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
The surplus of TZS 4,340,341,718 reported in the statement of financial
performance arises from activities that are undertaken by Mzumbe University as
part of its service delivery activities. Activities include such related activities in
which the University engages in furtherance of, incidental to, or arising from these
activities.

31.  PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS/REVERSALS MADE DURING THE YEAR

The University has adjusted the accumulated surplus of previous years for TZS
((594,089,707)} as per requirements of IPSAS 3 (Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors) and The Public Assets Management Guideline 2019
issued by the Ministry responsible for Finance and Planning aimed at addressing
policy, legal, regulatory, operational and technological challenges that arise in the
course of managing public assets. These adjustments are further elaborated as
shown below:
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30.06.2022
TZS

Effect of changes in Intangibles Accounting Estimates (594,089,707)
Sub-Total (594,089,707)
Other prior year adjustments: _

Payment for year 2019/20 paid in year 2020/21 not

recognised as a liability for that particular year

Unrecognized responsibility allowance P.E for

Unrecognized Revenue (Student Fee)

Unrecognized payment for 2020/21

Sub-Total

30.06.2021
TZS
1,069,272,205

1,069,272,205

-248,403,152

-248,403,152

Total (594,089,707))

820,869,053

32, NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks
and investments in money market instruments. Cash and cash equivalents
included in the cash flow statement comprise the following statement of
financial position amounts:

30.06.2022 30.6.2021

TZS TZS

Cash on hand and balances with banks 8,428,879,758 6,187,991,623
Total 8,428.879.758 6,187,991,623

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment, intangible and Work in Progress
During the period, the University acquired property, plant, and equipment
with an aggregate cost of TZS 1,991,398,816. Net cash payments of TZS
2,788,994,674 were made to purchase property, plant.
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(¢) Reconciliation of Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Surplus/
(Deficit) from Ordinary Activities

2021/22 2020/21
TZS TZS
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 4,340,341,718 2,195,981,900
Add/(less) non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,346,258,806 3,225,134,600
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 43,098,276 (77,193,766)
Additional non-monetary Revenue (449,527,360) -
Total non-cash items 2,939,829,722 3,147,940,834
Add/(less) items classified as investing or
financing activities
Net (gains)/losses on disposal of property,
plant, and equipment - (24,142,875)
Total items classified as investing or
financing activities - (24,142 ,875)
Add/(less) movements in statement of
financial position items
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables (825,244,729) (253,569,606)
{Increase)/Decrease in prepayments (360,929,442) (146,202,569)
{Increase)/Decrease in inventories (316,467,551) (6,837,316)
Irr:\:zlaus:/ {Decrease) in payables and deferred (339,087,007) (904,639,181)
Increase/{Decrease) in provisions (111,400,000) 20,000,000
Total net movement in statement of (1,953,128,729)  (1,291,248,672)
financial position items -
Net cash flows from operating activities 5,327,042,711 4,028,531,187
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33. SOCIAL SECURITY COSTS FOR THE YEAR 2021/22
Mzumbe University makes compulsory payments to Public Service Social Security
Fund (PSSSF). Such payments are usually earmarked to finance employees’ social
benefits and are often paid to those Pension Funds that provide such benefits.
These benefits are narrated hereunder:

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

TZS TZS

PSSSF - Employers Contribution 561,899,097 535,915,771
PSSSF - Employers Contribution 2,794,983,585 2,675,230,205

TOTAL 3,356,882,682 3,211,145,976

34, EFFECTS ON FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Tanzanian
Shillings using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
statement of financial performance.

Denomin ations 30.06.2022
Bank Bank Equivalent Cash Book Gain (Loss) 30.06. 2021
Balance Closing Amount Balance
Rate TZS TZS TZS

uUsD 9,212 2,293 21,119,095 -7,311,722 28,430,817

EURO 211,575 2,422 512,535,396 579,921,048 (67,385,652)

GBP 675 2,803 1,892,341 6,035,782 (4,143,441)
TOTAL 535,546,832 578,645,108 (43,098,276) 77,193,766

35. DEFERRED TAX
Mzumbe University is exempted from paying income tax and therefore
computation of potential deferred tax is not necessary.

36. ULTIMATE OWNER OF THE UNIVERSITY
The Government of the United Republic of Tanzania is the sole owner of the
University.

37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. The related party transaction is guided by 43
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IPSAS 20.

37.1 Control

Mzumbe University, a Government-owned Institution, was established at Mvomero
District in Morogoro, in place of the Institute of Development Management-
Mzumbe (hereinafter referred to as the former Institute) by the Mzumbe University
Act, 2001. The former Institute which was established by the Institute of
Development Management Act, 1972 ceased to exist on 1 January 2002 when the
University legally came into existence. The establishing

Act was repealed by Act No.7 of 2005 (The Universities Act) and the University was
re- established by Article 4 of the Mzumbe University Charter and Rules of 2007
made under Section 25 of the Universities Act, 2005,

In addition, the University receives the administration direction from the Ministry
of Education Science and Technology (MOEST).

37.2 Disclosure of Related Party Transactions

Puring the period under review, the University had both operating and/or financial
relationship with several Government entities including the Treasury Registrar,
Higher Education Students Loans Board (HESLB) which sponsors undergraduate
students, and Tanzania Education Authority (TEA) which provided loan for
construction of academic cum administrative building at Mbeya Campus.

The University also worked with other Government institutions including, the
Tanzania Commission for Universities (TCU) responsible in ensuring of Quality
Assurance, the Government Procurement Services Agency (GPSA), and Medical
Stores Department (MSD).

During the period under review, the University had the following receivables,
prepayments and payables with some of the mentioned Government Institutions:
Individuals Owning, Directly or Indirectly, an Interest with the University That
Gives Them Significant Influence over the University.
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30.06.2022 30.06.2021
TZS TS
Government Grant Received from Treasury in the year:
Personnel Emoluments 22,153,753,182 21,234,666,728
Development 978,000,000 _
Total 23,131,753,182 21,234,666,728
Prepayments:
GPSA (Supply of Motor Vehicle) 277,040,740 1,878,817
MSD {Supply of Medicines and Drugs) 1,652,256 1,625,856
(TEMESA) Tanzania Electrical, Mechanical and Electronics 21,017,542 -
Services Agency
The Dar es Salaam International Trade Fair (DITF) 19,010,240 19,480,240
318,720,778 23,011,313
Receivables;
Receivable from the Treasury
Personal Emolument Receivable - 140,199,439

140,199,439

Receivable from Higher Education Students’ Loan Board

(HESLB)
Students’ Fees 26,758,900 156,054,050
Total 26,758,900 156,054,050
Payables:

Loan from Tanzania Education Authority (TEA)

Payable Sum 600,000,000 800,000,000
Repayment 200,000,000 200,000,000
Total 400,000,000 600,000,000
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37.3  Key Management Personnel

The University classifies its key management personnel into one of three classes:

=  Members of the University Council;

» Senior executive officers (the Vice-Chancellor, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor-
Academic); and the Deputy Vice Chancellor-Administration and Finance),

responsible for reporting to the University Council and;

» Principal, Deans and Directors, responsible for the operation of the
University's operating segments (colleges, schools, faculties, directorates

and institutes), and reporting to the senior executive officers.

Members of the University Council are paid an annual fee of TZS 10,000,000 for
the chairperson and 8,000,000 for other members as well as TZS 200,000 for the
chairperson and 150,000 for other members in honoraria for each meeting
attended during the period. Senior Executive Officers and Principal, Deans and
Directors are employed as employees of the University, on permanent and
pensionable employment terms. The Key Management Personnel had no loans with

University,

The aggregate level of remuneration paid and number of persons (measured in
‘people’ for Members of the University Council, and ‘fulltime-equivalents’ (FTE’s)
for Senior Executive Officers and Principal, Deans and Directors} of key

management personnel is presented below:

30.06.2022 30.06.2021
TZS TZS
Key Management Personnel Emoluments 597,840,000 564,000,480
Allowances and Expenses - Council Meetings 388,608,000 366,612,050
Allowances and Expenses - Council Committees 466,859,500 440,433,448
Fees Paid to Council Members 100,000,000 106,000,000
TOTAL 1,553,307,500 1,477,045,978
Number of Key Management Personnel 38 39
Remunerated
In addition:

i.  No amount of loans or repaid by Key Management Personnel even
the close members during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

ii.  No amount of loan repaid during the year under review

iii.  No amount of the closing balance of loans at end of 30 June 2022.

37.4  Post-Employment Benefit

Post- employment benefits are one of the types of employee benefits. These are
benefits which will have to be paid after the employee has completed his/her
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38.

Members
TOTAL

39.

40.

employment. Key Management personnel will submit their request to PSSSF for
retirement benefits and their pensions.

DIRECTORS’ FEE

This represents amount payable to Members of the University Council as annual
directors’ fee. As per Treasury Registrar Circular No. 1 of 2020 with Ref. No.
CBD.22/39/01/09 (Board Members of public universities and university colleges),
the Chairman of the Council is paid an annual fee of TZS 10,000,000 and TZS
8,000,000 for each member of the Council, However the amount paid was less
due to unexpected passing away of former honourable chairman Eng. Prof.
Matthew L. Luhanga.

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

No. of Rate Amount No, of Rate Amount

TZS
Chairman 110,000,000 10,000,000 1 10,000,000 10,000,000

persons TZS TZS persons TZS

12 8,000,000 90,000,000 13 8,000,000 104,000,000
100,000,000 114,000,000

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION

Mzumbe University being a Government Institution, has recurrent revenue
subvention from the Government amounting to TZS 23,131,753, 182 on which TZS
22,153,753,182 to cater for Person emoluments and TZS 978,000,000 for
Development projects compared to TZS 20,692,774,880 on which TZS
19,692,774,880 for the Person emoluments and TZS 1,000,000,000 for
Development expenditure that was approved by the Parliament. The amount
received amounted to 112% of the total amount approved by the Parliament for
recurrent and development for the financial year 2021/22.

INTER GOVERNMENT TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review the University paid a total of TZS
2,888,942,901 to other Government entities as shown below.
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Inter Government Transactions 2021/22

Architects and Quantity Surveyors Registration Board 2,130,000

Ardhi University 51,770,878

Controller and Auditor General 175,400,000
E-Government Agency 6,313,000
Government Procurement Services Agency 850,015,091
Institute of Accountancy Arusha 8,850,000
Medical Stores Department 2,492,158
Ministry of Education, Science and Technology 1,500,000
Morogoro Works Training Institute 2,878,000
National Board of Accountants and Auditors 8,768,750
National Construction Council 1,500,000
National Examination Council of Tanzania 27,378,000
National Institute for Medical Research 1,100,000
National Insurance Corporation Morogoro 183,520,564
Nelson Mandela African Institution of Science and Technology 5,585,000
Public Procurement Regulatory Authority 5,050,000
Sokoine University of Agriculture 6,420,000
The Tanzania Electric Supply Company Limited 325,381,908
Tanzania Commission for Science And Technology 6,300,000
Tanzania Education Authority 236,000,000
Tanzania Forest Services Agency 1,660,000
Tanzania Laboratory Service Board 1,080,000
Tanzania National E-Procurement System 2,500,000
Tanzania Personal Secretaries Association 6,800,000
Tanzania Posts Corporation 1,162,300
Tanzania Telecommunications Company Limited 212,118,758
Tanzania Trade Development Authority 19,010,240
Tanzania Electrical, Mechanical and Electronics Services Agency 32,164,854
The Association of African Business Schools 7,017,000
The Institute of Internal Auditors Tanzania 9,624,000
The Tanganyika Law Society 1,100,000
The Tanzania Commission For Universities 363,414,000
Tanzania Public Service College 1,400,000
Treasury Registrar 300,000,000
University of Dar Es Salaam 9,800,000
University of Dar-Es-Salaam Computing Centre 3,448,400
University of Dodoma 3,520,000
Vocational Education and Training Authority 4,770,000
TOTAL 2,888,942,901
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41.

42,

43.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

According to IPSAS 14 -Post balance sheet events are those events, favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

i. Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period (Adjusting events after the
reporting period)

ii. Those that is indicative of conditions that arose after the
reporting peried (non-adjusting events after the reporting
period).

There were no significant known events that impacted on the result for the year
and financial position of the University after the reporting date, but if there is
retrospective and prospective adjustment the Authority will adjust the Financial
Statements.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022; Mzumbe University has a case at the Land District Tribunal
Morogoro in respect leased building for provision of secretarial service. Hearing of
this case was done and the court decided on favour of MU, The court ordered the
eviction to be done by the court broker in accordance to the law. The matter is at
execution stage and the University is making a close follow at District Land Tribunal
for the appointment of the Court broker who will execute the court order.

CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2022; staff, tenant and supplier of goods have commenced legal
proceedings against Mzumbe University in respect of labour dispute, disposal of
obsolete assets and eviction from the apartment. The estimated pay out is TZS
60,451,823 should the action be successful. Judgment date has not been set and
therefore it is not practicable to state the timing of the payment, if any. The
University has been advised by its Legal Counsel that it is only possible, but not
conceivable, that the action will succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liabi lity
has been made in these financial statements.

S/N Nature of Contingent Liability Amount (TZS)
1. Civil Case No. 144 of 2014 (Rekha N. Kanabar Vs Mzumbe 20,000,000

University)
2. Civil Case No. 55 of 2015 {Michael J. Mgweno t/a M. J. Traders &

General Maintenance vs. John Matipani & Mzumbe University) 15,000,000
3. Land Application No.445/2021 (The Attorney General Vs. Stanley 25,451,823

Chambasi and Peter Chambasi

Total 60,451,823
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44, CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2022, Mzumbe University had Contractual Commitments amounting
to TZS 5,546,009,837 as compared to TZS 4,947,810,578 as at 30 June 2021. The
commitments were relating to the construction of administration building,
academic building, rehabilitation of teaching infrastructures, sport grounds and
other non-current assets. Status of capital commitments is as indicated below:

Approved and contracted for

TOTAL

45, LEASE COMMITMENTS
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to the statement of financial performance on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

30.06.2022 30.06.2021
TZS TZ5
5,546,009,837 4,947,810,578
5,546,009,837  4,947,810,578

The University did not have any finance or operating leases as at 30 June 2022.

46, REVENUE ON CASH AND ACCRUAL

Accrual Accrual
Total Amount Amount from Total r
Note Revenue-On recognised | previous year : ever;que
. accrual during the received i g8s
Description year during the
1 2 3 4
Revenue from Non- 22 29,721,368,109
Seohanes 18,905,354,349 10,816,013,761
Revenue from
23 23,788,292,62
exchange S26 | 1,414,353,536 | 1,093,468,894 | 23,467,407,984
transactions
Total
53,509,660,73 | 20,319,707,885 | 1,093,468,894 | 34,283,421,74
150

Controller and Auditor General

AR/PA/MU/2021/22




[AARYATALR L TAL TR\

Telauan JOJLpny pue J31]043U0)

LG1
PLLSLT LOOTE GLE'G8LFOS | 09E'9P6°TIV) | L8TLSEPLL | KIS '65P°0TS 8L | 1G6°0ZEESH 6 &inypuadx] |ejo|
6/9968°+0°E 000°867°E91 97£‘799°48L 000 6GE°EL9°E
000000 09T 000000 SY 000000+ 000°000°9EZ sBuwmo.log Jo JuswAedsy
v19°'V66°88L T 000°86Z°GL1 97£°799€9/ 000“65E‘LEP S 3dd jo uonsinboy
SWAL unpuadxy TYLIdYD
GEO‘6LE°956°8T GLE'GBL'VPOS | 09E°BF9°66T°L | ZBT'LSEPLL | BBLL6LTELLL | 1S6°196°6LL SK
Z€1°960°059 Z€1°950°059 sa5UadXT SANBASIUNUPY JOYI0
000°000°001 000°000°001L S324 si030au1q
000°00G‘¥EL 000005 ‘PEL 000°000°0S1L 000°000°05 4 595Uadx3 /s8] HpNY
000000+ 000‘000°¢Z sasuadxa 35a491u|
88966 80L £96°/78°TT LEP'PTE’ sasuadh
€ 56 wu:m:wu:.—mz pue ._._mnmm SULIN0OY
91+ 98K 86+ 0L G/E°GRL P0G | 8£°266°GE ISTLGEPLL | 0L6‘6HOP69°E 9£0 LG I¥S YL pasn sa)1qewnsuo) pue sanddng
6£9°6EE°0P8"9) 786051671 G69°618°GK9°€L | 7GE°B00°/SE'6T | SIYaug saahodwy pue saLR|es ‘safem
ISWAL TUNLIANIdX3 LNIFUNDTH
(3-7+a+2+8-¥) =4 3 a d 9 v
(sauojuaaul
Jeal
Jeak oyl Buiso)2) pua
awdupnp | o d A £ ays 8
asijn Jeok uLinp ple -Jeak ay; Jeak ay3 suLinp JenJony
ysen uo aunjipuadx3 P mmn..Sm._ d sieah snoiaaid Je pazyun paswisosal uo aunupuadxy
E.o._ woly Junowy j0U Inq JUNOLWY JenJny Jelot
3 Jenlaoy paJnioid
SBLIOJUDAL]
S3LIOJUDAU]
TYNUIDY ANV HSYD NO FUNLIANIdX3

TVNHUIIVY ANV HSVYD NO JUNLIAN3dX3

Ly

ZZOZANNT 0F AIANT HVIA FHL Y0d SINIWIALVLS IVIONVYNIA 3HL OL SI1I0N
(NW) ALISYIAINN IGWNZW




MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2022

48.

COMMENTARY ON BUDGET AND EXPLANATION OF MATERIAL DIFFERENCES
The reasons for the material differences between the final budget and actual
amounts on comparable basis are explained below: -

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

This revenue received from the Government against budget is a net of the
unremitted budgeted amount to cater for personal emoluments and fund budgeted
for staff recruitment.

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

The variance, which is 14% noted in accrual revenue received from internal sources
is a result of collected amounts mainly from students fees whose collection follows
the academic year which runs between October and November while the financial
year runs between July and June.

Supplies and Consumables Used
The variance represents capital expenditure funds received for research funded
projects in the previous year utilized by the year-end in respect of researches.

Directors Fees
The variance represents amount not paid due to passing away of former honorable
chairperson in the first quarter of financial year under review.

Audit Fees/Expenses
The difference arises as amount paid is as agreed between the Management of the
University and the CAG.

Statement of financial position

Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)

The variance represents capital expenditure funds utilized by the year-end in
respect of purchase of Furniture for new students Hostels.
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49, TRANSFER FROM/(TO) OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES
30.06.2022 RESTATED 2021
TZS TZS
Meals and Accommodation Allowance 3,638,661,544 8,524,935,460
TOTAL 3,638,661,544 8,524,935,460
50.  GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND OTHER TRANSFER PAYMENTS
30.06.2022 RESTATED
TZS TZS
Revenue Grants from Donors (External 6,199,352,217 3,880,448,347
Assistance
Government Grants 978,000,000 5,586,655,558
TOTAL 7,177,352,217 9,467,103,905
51. OTHER REVENUE
2021/22 RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
House Rent Revenue - 317,302,120
Other Revenue - 366,507,803
Hall Hire Revenue - 10,574,740
Rip Publication Revenue - 6,478,499
TOTAL - 700,863,162
52.  SUPPLIES AND CONSUMABLES USED
2021/22 RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
Office Consumables papers pencils pens 230,685,696 136,201,784
and stationaries
Computer Supplies and Accessories 72,221,864 -
Office and general supplies and services 61,113,784 311,725,370
Computer Software 4,554,060 -
Newspapers and Magazines 55,987,000 -
Printing and Photocopy 16,316,700
Software Licence Fees 98,447,191 -
Outsourcing Costs includes cleaning and 1,284,311,224 773,556,173
security services
Electricity charges by TANESCO/other 451,195,634 -
PSEs eg. REA
Water expenses to govt entities 47,204,759 161,278,042
Diesel 798,136,745 703,081,967
Drugs and Medicines 62,439,357 -
Laundry and Cleaning 13,912,000 -
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Rental office and housing expenses to 9,594,850
private entities
Uniforms 13,636,000
Meetings conferences and seminars to 58,781,566 -
PSEs eg. AICC
Accommodation 69,563,600 -
Tuition fees 135,577,872
Tuition fees to private entities 45,789,802
Training allowances 42,201,500 -
Training materials 39,113,531 -
Air Travel Tickets 36,499,747
Research and Dissertation 60,678,977 -
Research and consultancies 898,763,101 1,749,696,737
Conference and Seminars 427,481,670 -
Upkeep Allowances 304,282,440 -
Ground Travel Bus Railway Taxi etc 492,935,639
Lodging/Accommodation 52,072,500 -
Per Diem Domestic 2,113,476,675 1,444,542,056
Per Diem Foreign 6,446,884 -
Visa Application Fees 960,400 -
Advertising and Publication 17,102,200 57,245,530
Communication expenses to TTCL & 892,217 -
Other PSEs
Publicity 57,770,471 138,599,756
Subscription to other private bodies 192,155 -
Subscription to government entities eg. 16,314,650
NBAA CRB
Communication Network Services 362,214,819 415,399,973
Examination Expenses 394,366,416 -
Training expenses domestic to private 13,330,000 -
entities
Sporting Supplies 24,854,500 -
Exhibition Festivals and Celebrations 140,639,820 206,950,899
Entertainment 88,262,160 123,119,527
Gift and Prizes 30,366,800 180,343,247
Legal and inspection fees to private 2,340,000 -
entities
Legal fees 62,744,551 71,094,153
Education Supervision Expense 16,080,000 -
Environment impact assessment review 8,815,000 -
and monitoring expenses
Bank Charges and Commissions 91,642,343 -
Project Management 4,301,426,054 7,020,684,117
Recognition Registration Accreditation 4,377,528 -
Admission and Arti
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Honorariums expert opinion 270,798,690
Regulatory costs 104,312,299
Insurance expenses to NIC 33,600,121
Burial expenses 115,335,000
Subscription to other International 12,164,355
Institutions
TOTAL 14,174,324,917 13,493,519,331
53,  WAGES, SALARIES AND EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
30.06.2022 RESTATED
2020/21
TZS TZS
Casual Labourers 110,347,000 -
Leave Travel 79,900,194 -
Extra Duty 2,336,184,520 8,431,824,577
Responsibility Allowance 963,969,465 -
Outfit Allowance 4,220,000 -
Research & Data Collection Project 28,740,000 -
Subsistence Allowance 416,188,507
Directors Fee 214,000,000
Gratuities 2,148,000
Special Allowance 143,471,975 -
Field Practical Allowance 819,405,000 -
Professional Allowances 45,743,906
Councilors Allowance 51,000,000 -
Wages Salaries and Employee Benefits 949,832,992 643,963,861
Utilities 38,710,000 -
Transport Allowance 35,162,000
Facilitation Allowance 1,528,033,015 -
Honoraria 496,193,405 -
Electricity Allowance 68,329,000 -
Housing Allowance 426,600,000
Food and Refreshment 389,310,950
Telephone Allowance 46,542,800 -
Water and Waste Disposal 9,679,769 -
Furniture 21,610,000 -
NHIF Employer Contribution - - 535,915,771
PSSSF . 2,680,964,521
TOTAL 9,225,322,498 12,292,668,730
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54.

55.

56. OTHER EXPENSES

57,

STUDENTS LOANS PAYMENTS

Meals, Accommodation,
Stationery Allowance

ROUTINE REPAIR AND MAINTAINANCE EXPENSES

Outsource Maintenance Contract Services
Cement Bricks and Building Materials
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials

Water Pumps

Service and Repair Motor Vehicles and

Water Crafts

Tyres and Batteries
Office equipment and appliances

paid/incurred
Air Conditioner

TOTAL

Property insurance
Insurance of Vehicles
Contribution to Consolidated Fund 15%

on Gross Revenue
Self Help Scheme

Consumables

Audit expenses

TOTAL

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

MZUMBE UNIVERSITY (MU)

30.06.2022 RESTATED 2021
TS TZS
3,630,975,795 9,501,729,835
3,630,975,795  9,501,729,835
2021/22  RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
540,218,790 -
19,783,349 .
236,943,603
111,290,008 ;
6,274,400 .
6,203,500
920,713,650 -
2021/22  RESTATED 2020/21
TZS TZS
109,644,506 13,036,175
138,011,626 47,915,808
300,000,000 300,000,000
3,700,000 -
318,986,043 646,830,390
98,700,000 -
969,042,175 1,007,782,374

Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever considered necessary in order
to facilitate comparability with current year’s figures.

156

Controller and Auditor General

AR/PA/MU/2021/22



